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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013

NBE BB E in HK$ Million ﬁg 2013 2012
S Turnover 3(a) 9,734 7,986
BEKANREEER Direct costs and operating expenses (2,482) (1,826)
EF Gross profit 7,252 6,160
E Al A Other income 4 63 2,247
THEA Administrative expenses (698) (695)
REtAREWEZ AFE  Operating profit before change in fair value

))& SR T of investment properties 6,617 7,712
B NFEE Increase in fair value of investment properties 12 2,651 3,057
2Et AREYE 2 AFE  Operating profit after change in fair value

B E E R of investment properties 9,268 10,769
FEMA Interest income 978 722
Mi5EH Finance costs (549) (458)
FEMAFEE Net interest income 5 429 264
JEIRE B EEFER Share of profits of joint ventures 14 431 276
B A AT A Profit before taxation 3(a) &6 10,128 11,309
A Taxation 8(a) (1,567) (1,379)
AN F Profit for the year 8,561 9,930
FEAS - Attributable to:

A& ER Shareholders 23 4,557 5,262

FEEAR R A Non-controlling interests 24 4,004 4,668

8,561 9,930

R Earnings per share 11(a)

HAK Basic $3.38 $3.90

e Diluted $3.36 $3.87

BHREME DA BRRZ — 8D -
FABRREBIEREFIINHEELO -
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to the year are set out in note 10.
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013

NBE BB E in HK$ Million ﬁg 2013 2012
REREHEF] Profit for the year 8,561 9,930
Hih 2wk Other comprehensive income 8(d)
EgnEHoBEEREZ Items that may be reclassified subsequently
IER : to profit or loss:
KEMEREZD Net movement in investment
SRR revaluation reserve 13 11
T E SN B A B BRIE Exchange difference arising from
EECEREZR translation of overseas subsidiaries 2,989 171
3,002 182
rEELHINEERE Total comprehensive income for the year 11,563 10,112
FEEmEUNSAEEE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
R&ER Shareholders 6,289 5,371
IR RS Non-controlling interests 5,274 4741
11,563 10,112

B REM T DA B RK 2 — B -

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

W=—Z—=%+=H=+—8 At December 31, 2013

£E NG
Group Company
G
LA EBIRtE in HK$ Million Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets
KB YE Investment properties 115,818 106,102 - =
BRPREYE Investment properties
under development 30,478 24,482 - -
HtEEEE Other fixed assets 295 255 - _
12 146,591 130,839 - -
M A AlfERS Interest in subsidiaries 13 - - 15,550 15,001
AP EER Interest in joint ventures 14 2,991 2,247 - -
HEmEE Other assets 15 1,282 1,258 - -
BRI E E Deferred tax assets 21(b) 19 19 - =
150,883 134,363 15,550 15,001
RBEE Current assets
R & MIRT Tk Cash and deposits with banks 16 39,704 40,183 2 =
& U BR 70 K EL At R U R Trade and other receivables 17 2,661 860 - =
Hth&E Other assets 15 - 452 - _
FEYE Properties for sale 18 5,717 6,139 - =
HHEZEE Assets held for sale - 906 - _
48,082 48,540 2 _
i =R Current liabilities
RITERRAMEE Bank loans and other borrowings 19 1,657 1,113 - -
JFE AT BR TN 2 At FE ST R Trade and other payables 20 6,250 5,240 11 7
e IE Taxation payable 21(a) 646 446 - =
FHEZBE Liabilities held for sale - 13 _ _
8,553 6,812 11 7
REEE/(AE) BE Net current assets/(liabilities) 39,529 41,728 (9) (7)
EEABRREARE Total assets less current liabilities 190,412 176,091 15,541 14,994
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITERRHMES Bank loans and other borrowings 19 43,367 36,532 - -
FEATBT B A F5kIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 13(b) - = 471 373
EIEFIE B & Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 10,637 9,944 - -
54,004 46,476 471 373
BEEFE NET ASSETS 136,408 129,615 15,070 14,621
BARR#E Capital and reserves
R& A Share capital 22 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
B Reserves 23 69,222 63,874 13,720 13,271
PR ERAERS Shareholders’ equity 70,572 65,224 15,070 14,621
FEFERR Non-controlling interests 24 65,836 64,391 - =
HRERS TOTAL EQUITY 136,408 129,615 15,070 14,621
FR % Philip N.L. Chen
EEEKE Managing Director
(EEA=] H.C. Ho
HITES Executive Director
W HmEMT AR B HRETK 2 —3 D ° The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013
P SR A 2
Shareholders’ equity
FEERR
T
BRA  HivFEE  REBEF Non- arEm
Share Other  Retained #%8  controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
(fE22)  (MdaE23)  (BfiEE23) (Pf=E24)
A EETTE in HK$ Million (Note 22)  (Note 23)  (Note 23) (Note 24)
R-_ZE——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 1,348 8,180 50,982 60,510 60,658 121,168
RNEFE A Profit for the year = - 5262 5262 4668 9930
HEMERESE)FE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve - 11 - 11 - 11
MEFIN B A TIBRIEAEL  Exchange difference arising
ZEHER from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - 98 - 98 73 171
AEEEHEW=RTE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 109 5,262 5,371 4,741 10,112
FFEERERE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (513) (513) - (513)
REZHHRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - = (256) (256) = (256)
BIIRG Issue of shares 2 15 17 — 17
EEREEA Employee share-based
payments - (4) 113 109 124 233
$§§E—F’Eﬁf9ﬁ%’/}ﬂ Change in non-controlling
ZBRER M E S interests arising from
IR iR B decrease of the Group’s
shareholding in a subsidiary - (14) - (14) 74 60
[BENE g Tl s Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - = (1,176) (1,176)
B8 T IEIZE R R IE Repayment to non-controlling
interests - - - - (30) (30)
RZZE——F+—-A= At December 31, 2012 and
r—E—=F— )EJ—E January 1, 2013 1,350 8,286 55,588 65,224 64,391 129,615
N S v K| Profit for the year - - 4,557 4,557 4,004 8,561
WEGERBBEE)FE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve - 13 - 13 - 13
MEEINHI B ATBRIEEA  Exchange difference arising
ZIERER from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - 1,719 - 1,719 1,270 2,989
AEEEHEWSBEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 1,732 4,557 6,289 5,274 11,563
FEFEEREEE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (810) (810) - (810)
REFFERE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - (256) (256) - (256)
BT Issue of shares - 2 - 2 _ 2
EENREEA Employee share-based
payments - 67 22 89 75 164
AREEET KB AR Change in non-controlling
Z RREIE M= A interests arising from increase
FEFE AR HE o of the Group’s shareholding
in a subsidiary - 34 - 34 (2,184) (2,150)
B IR AR B Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - (1,704) (1,704)
Ei8 T IEIERR i e 708 Repayment to non-controlling
interests - - - - (16) (16)
A—E—=F+=-HA=+—H At December 31, 2013 1,350 10,121 59,101 70,572 65,836 136,408

MK T ARG IRER Z — 87

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013

NBE BB E in HK$ Million Woi 2013 2012
KRR Operating activities
RELEEB RS Cash generated from operations 25 6,147 6,219
BEAHIE Tax paid

BB BREH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (386) (455)

B BETER China Income Tax paid (589) (596)
REKETH AL FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 5,172 5,168
REEE Investing activities

BEETEE Payment for fixed assets (9,896) (5,360)
HEBTFEBEMESHRIBFZE Net sale proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 40 5,171
BREHEZEEERS Deposits received for assets held for sale - 91
HEMRB AT AERIBFERE Net sale proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 802 -
BUFFE I B R EFKIE Receipt of matured held-to-maturity investments 452 450
B E Interest received 984 682
BUlEETFERE Dividends received from joint ventures 19 40
SEDE (BER)/ER (Advance to)/Repayment from joint ventures (332) 141
BUWIEETRIREIEB KB Dividends received from unlisted investments - 3
I EMREERER Repayment of advances to unlisted investments - 1
R=18 A &2 BHERTT Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposits with

Z225md /() maturity greater than three months 7,635 (3,223)
ARRETES 2 REFHE Net cash used in investing activities (296) (2,004)
A& EE Financing activities

FTILIRITE SRR Proceeds from new bank loans and
HAit GBS RIA other borrowings 7,655 16,054
BERIRITER Repayment of bank loans (475) (5,920)
1T{E R BRREFT 15 7118 Proceeds from exercise of share options 2 17
ERFEREMEEEH Interest and other borrowing costs paid (1,221) (968)
BENmEHERHR Finance lease charges paid - (3)
B S Dividends paid (1,066) (769)
[SERER2di e Fali e Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (1,704) (1,176)
BRI AR i R FIE Repayment to non-controlling interests (16) (30)
BB A RIS AR A (Decrease)/Increase in non-controlling
CRiA)/ #n interests in subsidiaries (2,129) 60
BEME 2 EAREMD Capital element of finance lease - (104)
REMETH RS FHE Net cash generated from financing activities 1,046 7,161
BEREESEEY 2N Increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,922 10,325
Exgm oo Effect of foreign exchange rate change 1,115 444
R—B—HBZEER Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 32,072 21,303
REeZEY
Rt+=—B=+—H=2 Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 16 39,109 32,072
ReRELZEEY

GRS ARG RER 2 — 8 o

140

BiEEEAR AT HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

2013 &% ANNUAL REPORT

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



B 75 R R P RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA7B¥E A7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESFHEE

(a) EHI=EHH

AR RRIIIBIBEABERZ (BT BER
SRR (THKFRSs]) MR - Max SR E
HEGMASRMZAEERERCEE
M mEEA (BB G ER
(THKASs]) K2t - BB ARG RAINR
BB CRRURB) 2 RFE o AN Rk IR
B(ERBARIMBRARZESF LMR
AD 2ERBERTE  ARERBZEES
ATERERBRA LT o

BB AGEMEZ B REEBETZ
HKFRSs o ttFHR|EAEE KA AT ERI
S EARE BT HIRATRA - &
REREESES SR AERE MG
SHHENSHBRES A ATBRE
AR - BEAEERETIRAHEE2

RS I SR A B AT S 5T B R
R FEER BRI AR (HI5EE32) ©

(b) MBHMREREE
RERBRREBARTAREMBAR (5
BIAKE ) RARERAE DR 2 -

(R TIX sl @t S B AESN - B7%
WRIGAE L A DR REAE -

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A
summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial adoption of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 32).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 FESHBE @)

(b) BIBREHEE (&)

BIRRFTE HKFRSs 2 Bk - BIEEA
HEEBRZER - BEABNMKRTYIR
TEH HIE - Bt RBRE - BT RAEH
ZBREDBERELR  UKZEEER
BRTHEEEAE EMAZMEL A
RO 45 RAB R 1T R B R 1B H 38 (S BN FE 4D
15 A R R B (E R A R T S
it o B AR e it EbEr B A ©

EEEe T EHENSRMGEMBERE -
MREFHAFTNETRARYEX — B
HYefeaxiHRER  RERTY
ERIMAREEEAZE - AIEELERT
B B AN R 2R HI R AR

S 12 [E7EFE FA HKFRSs B PTYEH B A IS Sk
BEERZENHE LA T EEMENER
JREAR M EE31m it o

(c) MIBQAIRFERES
MBARRAEEZESN ZAR - EXNKE
SEZBEREES A& B E 3R & b &

SR - MBEDURERITERNAZ
EoHeER  BIRSAIERZERS &

RIEHIRER - AEEERZEN (BAKE
REMALRE) o

RMBARZIREBRIGER c AREX
EEFIEEREERNEEMBERERA -
SERNPERZEHRER S - UREERA
MRXBAMEEZEAARER G SER
HREMBHRRF2BUEH - KEAHNR
TSI BURBIREE 2 E T AR R
W R BEEBERRNREERRR
2 HIRRIME 2 &R 17

142 fErE£EEE 27 HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 31.

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

2013 %% ANNUAL REPORT



1 FESFBER @)
(c) MBATIRIEZERERS (&)
JEIE R BIEAR AR EERBE BB A

AR EEEEAEMEZNBRRNEEF
EED - LM T - AEBEALRFZFE

=B A BB AT AN G TR B AN = B
BANMNSEDAERMBREEENA
WEL - RNREMBEIMRRA - FRIEIE
HEARNNBRREZDRINESZANZS -

FEFR A A s B G AN 5= B HA R AR R IR 1Y

Ba M RESEOEHABSEEREE
WHBBENDERGERERIEFESERH
WasRRZ5 -

N 5% B 10 BT B 1 B A 2 B B T S A

Bk RIRERXZ AR IR
AEELRA SN R MO IR R A2
SNEBEARREAAESNES  BF
SR E LR R

EARERE—WBAR ZIEHE - Kk

HEZMBRARZMAERBEAR  MAE
EMREBER SELD o EAERKITEH %
BIREZAENB AR 2GR A TFE
MR MLEBRRE/VNAERSEHE
ERRFE s (ER) MRANBER
RBERBIHRAELERE °

ERXRB2HBRARRA - HERRZ
BE TH iR A AME R = T AR B B 18 71 Bk
(MFEEL()) ©

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 1(j)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 FEEHBEX @

(d) &%
BECEAEAEEXNAL T REAMATIZ
BRHRETHREHNER FEEREREZ
25 o

ARERAERFRZED I ARRIEELR
BMBHRAIIER > M ARRAR - &
BREAEBEREAELEZFEENIE
BZHEEHRE - RERBEREEALE
BEEEZEEENKBREERE A
R MAKBEREGELERKBEER
BRRzHEtbE2RBENRE 2 RaER
MHER ©

EAKREHSEPEAENEIEREBARE
PrictEsly  NEREMAERESHIE
T UWHNABERETRNER : AWK
SEABITAEREERY  AREED
EELMARARS - gt E - AREHE
BECEMERESRBEDETEZR
BREEE UARBEELERAKEYHA
BRREFE 0 o REER -

EAKBRAHEELF ZHRIEGE
MHiIRHEZRE AR AR MAE
ERREER RS o EAIERRIERE
BIDREBZAERE ZERIZ A EERE
R MUEEBERERERERREREE
I AFE -

AEEBREALEORIRARIMELEZR
BHREMNREE  HARAKEREGZELE
Ptz st fIHE8E - (B R B IR ERE
PArEEEECHIRBIE  IIglKER
P R X EE o

EARBZABRRNERA - BEERZERE
TrgRAMEREAREREESIRR (1) °
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B LB AR 2R HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ net assets. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the joint ventures for the year, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the joint
ventures’ other comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the joint venture is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture, except where unrealized losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in joint
ventures are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 1(j)).

2013 %% ANNUAL REPORT



1 FEEHBEX @

(e) BHE
HERELESHZIKABBRASEEERE
Wi R 2R kRl EE - AEMKREEZ
NEEFRFLRED 2 Z5E ©

ﬁ%%ﬁzﬁiﬁﬁi%%’ﬁ)ﬁfﬁ)ﬁﬂéﬁ?ﬁﬂiﬂfz
WA FE M R AR (HEEL() °

AEBEERBET 2 AIHBIEE - BEM
SARBENRFERAIEE D BBEE
BHZRARD > eEFERZERBENR
RSP HER

EHE—RARR  EREEBAFER
HERFTARERA °

f M=
1. REYFRBZREFREYFE

REMERRBHERZERXFH
FAEHRDAS AR/ HEREEZ L1
k/SEF - EPRERBFEERBETE
KAGz L RDEFEESXBERPUAMA
BRIEIRBEME Y -

REMEARFEAR  BRIEVEREE
BIESERZRERMYENDFEESR
TREAI SR E - EAFEZESHHENH
&R é%%ﬁﬁ?iﬁ’]fﬂﬂ&ﬁa%&ﬁ%ﬂﬂ&
RiEs - WEMEZBEWAMMEL(q
Pt AR ©

MAEBERBEXEHERE —EMEER
ARERE S U K /S EE AL E - R
ARTANMENS>BERARRRED
¥ - AMEDEAREMENYEERT)
PEAMNBRERERSEFANER - 18
A RETEARNBERERERE
MEMIREMENER - BIHES WM
1(g) ATl ABR o

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is
tested regularly for impairment (note 1(j)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a
business combination is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

On disposal of an entity, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Properties

1. Investment properties and investment properties under
development

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 1(q).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified
as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in
note 1(g).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Properties (Continued)
2.  Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are classified under current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
borrowing costs capitalized (note 1(0)) and other direct expenses. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

3. Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are classified under current assets and
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including borrowing
costs capitalized (note 1(0)), attributable to unsold properties. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price as determined
by reference to management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions, less costs to be incurred in selling the property.

(g) Other fixed assets

1. Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses (note 1(j)). Gains or losses arising
from the retirement or disposal of an item of other fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

2. Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Other fixed assets (Continued)

2. Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

The classification is determined based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. Leases of assets under
which the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which
the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is classified as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis and is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(if)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company or
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for as described
in note 1(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals
are written off as an expense of the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other fixed assets (Continued)

2. Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)  Operating leases charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(h) Depreciation
1. Investment properties

No depreciation is provided for investment properties and investment
properties under development.

2. Other fixed assets

Depreciation on other fixed assets is calculated to write off the cost, less
their estimated residual value, if any, on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 50 years or unexpired lease term,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 4-20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

(i) Financial assets
1. Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized in the statement of
financial position at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(note 1(j)).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
2. Other investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognized in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (note 1(j)). Other investments in equity
securities are classified as available-for-sale equity securities and are
initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. At the end of the
reporting period, the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity. Dividend income from these investments is
recognized directly in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
in note 1(g). When these investments are derecognized, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(j) Impairment of assets

An assessment is carried out at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a current or non-
current asset, other than properties carried at revalued amounts, is
impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered in determining whether the investments
are impaired.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognized as follows:

— For current receivables carried at amortized cost, the impairment loss
is recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment and
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective rate where the effect of discounting
is material. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that
have an impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows such
as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If in a subsequent
period the amount of impairment loss decreases, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognized in profit
or loss.
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(k)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss that has

been recognized in investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment loss recognized in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities is not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

For other non-current assets, the recoverable amount is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in
profit or loss whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favorable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Trade and other receivables

thereafter stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (note 1(j)), except

where the receivables are interest-free loans or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (note 1(j)).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference
between costs and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

1.  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the

guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary

of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a

specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognized as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognized in accordance with the Company’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. When no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognized in profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized as deferred income
is amortized in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognized
in accordance with note 1(p)(2) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of guarantee will call upon the Company under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Company is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognized,
less accumulated amortization.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

2. Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. When the time value of the money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

1. Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognized upon the
later of the signing of sale and purchase agreements or the issue of
occupation permit by the relevant government authorities, which is
taken to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have passed to the buyer.

2. Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognized on a straight
line basis over the terms of the respective leases, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payment receivable. Contingent rentals are recognized as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)
3. Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

4.  Dividends

Dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment is
established.

(r) Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized, are
recognized. The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Taxation (Continued)

When investment properties and investment properties under
development are carried at their fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(f)(1), the amount of deferred tax
recognized is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
those assets at their carrying value at the end of the reporting period
unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognized when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the
entity (“functional currency”). The financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair values
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated in Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal
is recognized.

(t) Related parties

1. A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.
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1 FEEHBEX @ 1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t) BEAL ®) (t) Related parties (Continued)

2. (HBEES T EMIEE BNz E2EAK 2. An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
SEFRE applies:

() ZEREAAEEER—SE /K82 () Theentityand the Group are members of the same Group (which
T ( Bl & &R a] - Mxﬂ? G AEE ] means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

DR HAEE) o related to the others).

(i) —FEERAZ —BEMEIZARHAZ (i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
E (B —ERAKE AR ZEEE an associate or joint venture of a member of a Group of which the
THRE QR ZBE AR EEREE) o other entity is a member).

(i) MEERGAR—F=AHE%N% - (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(ivy HEBAF=-FEENSLELE (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
MiE—BERAZF=-FTEEBNHE an associate of the third entity.

NI
(v) ZEBRAAE@ENEAREFRERBEY  (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
T ok E B MR ST R B FIET R o employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) ZERESAMELWN() Fraimg A (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
Hll gk HEES o in note 1(t)(1).

(vii) FAMTEELIML)G) Pttty A 832 Z 82 (vii) A person identified in note 1(t)(1)(i) has significant influence over
BEARTE 7] HNEZERE (NZEE the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
MEAR]) TBEEEERKS - entity (or of a parent of the entity).

HzZ ATHBEZYHNRERKE SHEMMAE Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
Eﬁii BETXK S AEReE L EZ A may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
THRZALTEENKERE - dealings with the entity.

(u) PHRE (u) Segment reporting

"%—
EEE%: e %) Tﬁﬁ@i‘%fﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ\]%ﬁ

SEH2HF A EIEHFAREFN Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
T

EERBHEESREER  SLTEHAEER Group’s internal financial reporting to the Group’s most senior

executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and

BRRE— B EERmMS ' 2% assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of business
DEPRI B — Ak Z EK & 5 & (uA:/\“B. and geographical locations. For disclosure purpose, a reportable

AEABUNEESHMAERENTEE

segment comprises either one or more operating segments which

MmalF&6) B —RX&ESZ (AT EES can be aggregated together because they share similar economic

PrkiRB BB R M BB E) AR
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characteristics and nature of the regulatory environment, or single

operating segments which are disclosable separately because they

cannot be aggregated or they exceed quantitative thresholds.

B LB AR 2R HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Employee benefits

~

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement schemes

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, the cost of non-monetary
benefits and obligation for contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes, including those payables in mainland China and
Hong Kong under relevant legislation, are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

2.  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is measured at
grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted, and is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period taking into account the probability that the options
will vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based
compensation reserve).

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognized in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the related employee
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price. If the options expire
or lapse after the vesting period, the related employee share-based
compensation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

— HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

— HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

— HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
— HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

— Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present the items of
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss
in the future if certain conditions are met separately from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group’s presentation
of other comprehensive income in these financial statements has been
modified accordingly.

(b) HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidation — Special
purpose entities”. It introduces a single control model to determine
whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the
entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to
affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control
over an investee. The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at January 1, 2013.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.
Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by
considering the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other facts
and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations under the
arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified as joint operations
under HKFRS 11 are recognized on a line-by-line basis to the extent
of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other joint
arrangements are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11 and are
required to be accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Proportionate consolidation is no
longer allowed as an accounting policy choice.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 11, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to its interests in joint arrangements and
re-evaluated its involvement in its joint arrangements. The adoption of
HKFRS 11 does not have any material impact on the financial position
and the financial result of the Group.

(d) HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. To the extent that
the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided
those disclosures in notes 13 and 14.

(e) HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 12 and 30.

(f) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five
standards with consequential amendments to other standards and
interpretations. The adoption of these amendments does not have
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are
required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presentation” and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these
financial statements because the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into master netting arrangement or
similar agreement which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during
the periods presented.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses according to the nature of services
and products provided. Management has determined three reportable
operating segments for the measurement of performance and the
allocation of resources. The segments are property leasing in Hong Kong
and mainland China and property sales in Hong Kong.

Property leasing segment includes property leasing operation. The
Group’s investment properties portfolio, which mainly consists of retail,
office, residential, serviced apartments and carparks are primarily located
in Hong Kong and mainland China. Property sales segment includes
development and sale of the Group’s trading properties in Hong Kong.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on profit before
taxation.

Segment assets principally comprise all non-current assets and current
assets directly attributable to each segment with the exception of
interest in joint ventures, other assets, deferred tax assets, assets held
for sale and cash and deposits with banks. The investment properties
of the Group are included in segment assets at their fair values whilst
the change in fair value of investment properties is not included in
segment profits.
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3 EXERIBER 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(a) DEPEXBEREE (@) Turnover and results by segments
X FRE A A
Turnover Profit before taxation
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012 2013 2012
o Segment
S E N Property leasing
- B — Hong Kong 3,232 3,185 2,736 2,645
- R A — Mainland China 3,984 3,526 2,995 2,668
7,216 6,711 5,731 5313
Y IHE Property sales
- &% — Hong Kong 2,518 1,275 1,521 847
HE AR Segment total 9,734 7,986 7,252 6,160
E A Other income 63 2247
TERER (FzE) Administrative expenses (Note) (698) (695)
Rt AREME Operating profit before
ZAFEEHN change in fair value of
& A investment properties 6,617 7,712
WEMEZ Increase in fair value of
AFERE investment properties 2,651 3,057
-REBZYFERE — property leasing in Hong Kong 1,660 2112
— R E R YEFE - property leasing in mainland China 991 945
FLEMA Interest income 978 722
M ER Finance costs (549) (458)
BN F5E Net interest income 429 264
BEE & ERT Share of profits of joint ventures 431 276
R A& A Profit before taxation 10,128 11,309
B sE Note:

THRERBREREER - RGATHAEL (ZF—=
F:_E=T=A8T)  BEEAR/RTEENEN
HEREERN R FEOEN  ARERBRENE
EREME ©

Administrative expenses included share-based payments of $164 million (2012: $233
million) representing the amortization of the fair value of options granted to employees over
the vesting period and do not involve any cash outflow for the Group.
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3 EXFERIBEH @ 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) PPBEE (b) Total assets by segments
BEE
Total assets
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
2B Segment
YERE Property leasing
- B — Hong Kong 57,042 55,282
— R — Mainland China 90,417 76,394
147,459 131,676
YT Property sales
- &% — Hong Kong 7,510 6,162
HEpiEEE Segment total 154,969 137,838
BB EER Interest in joint ventures 2,991 2,247
Hth&EE Other assets 1,282 1,710
IRIEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 19 19
FHEZEE Assets held for sale - 906
e RIRTTER Cash and deposits with banks 39,704 40,183
1B E Total assets 198,965 182,903
4 HlwA 4 OTHER INCOME
KB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
HEREMERE Gain on disposal of investment properties 9 2149
FHREER 2R EM A Dividend income from listed investments 4 3
JEETIREIEE 2R EU A Dividend income from unlisted investments 11 3
P 5 W e 58 Net exchange gain 38 10
Hit Others 1 82
63 2,247
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5 REBWAFHE

5 NET INTEREST INCOME

BB EITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FEWA Interest income on
HRITER Bank deposits 967 703
FEMFREERRE Unlisted held-to-maturity investments 11 19
978 722
2 Interest expenses on
ARAFRNEERZRITERR Bank loans and other borrowings repayable
Hipfg & within 5 years 750 489
ARAFRERZRITERR Bank loans and other borrowings repayable
HibfgE over 5 years 430 292
1,180 781
MmEREER Finance lease charges - 3
HAEERA Other borrowing costs 85 67
BB R ANERE Total borrowing costs 1,265 851
B BERAERME (FiEE) Less: Borrowing costs capitalized (Note) (716) (393)
BB ER Finance costs 549 458
BN F5E Net interest income 429 264

B aE -

BRPMEZEERACEEFAIZ= (ZF—Z

FADZ_HNRN) ZFHRERE -

6 BRBLADER

Note:

annum for properties under development.

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The borrowing costs have been capitalized at an average rate of 3.0% (2012: 2.6%) per

S EETATE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BTN EHIBR T 5518 Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
BHEMEKA Cost of properties sold 794 355
BTIRA - BiEESREER Staff costs, including employee share-based
—EBARTHEET (ZE——F: payments of $164 million (2012: $233 million) 1,002 935
—E=F=88n1)
ne Depreciation 40 38
LEHEER Operating lease charges - 20
ZE AN S Auditors’ remuneration
- RS — audit services 11 12
- T M EAtb AR TS — tax and other services 5 5
WEETA : and after crediting:
KEYHEZHBSWALEE Bk Gross rental income from investment properties
BEESHtTHENTREEET less direct outgoings of $1,485 million
(Z2——F : +=ZBALFNEET) (2012: $1,398 million), including contingent
BREIARE=FEZT—EE8T rentals of $301 million (2012: $345 million) 5,731 5,313

(Z2——F: =ZfETHAEET)
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7 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Committee makes
recommendation to the Board on the Non-Executive Director’'s and
Independent Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration packages and
determines the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors.
The emoluments of directors are determined by the scope of responsibility
and accountability, and performance of individual Executive Directors,
taking into consideration of the Company’s performance and profitability,
market practice and prevailing business conditions, etc.

(a) EEM< (a) Directors’ emoluments
EEMSFEST ¢ Details of directors’ emoluments are summarized below:
LB BB in HK$ Million AE B
e o 2R RIKE
REYIFE= s &2 #ER
Salaries, Group’s
allowances BIEIELL  contributions
#%&  and benefits  Discretionary  to retirement
i Name Fees in kind bonuses scheme 2013 2012
HITES Executive Directors
FREISR Ronnie C. Chan 1.8 235 8.0 2.4 35.7 334
PeR /i 1ok Philip N.L. Chen 1.3 22.1 8.0 1.1 32.5 30.7
CEAS] H.C. Ho 1.3 4.5 3.7 03 9.8 8.7
FHITES Non-Executive Director
PREETR Gerald L. Chan 0.7 = = = 0.7 0.3
BUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
B B S.S. Yin 1.3 = - 1.3 0.5
FR&4MG Laura L.Y. Chen 1.8 = = = 1.8 0.8
8% 85 H.K. Cheng 1.9 - - - 1.9 0.9
57 Simon S.0. Ip 0.9 - - - 0.9 0.4
AIESE Ex-Director
fSElEp e William P.Y. Ko
(R=ZT—=4F (Resigned on
+=—A+=—B#&1fF) December 12, 2012) = - = - 14.3
—E-=F 2013 11.0 50.1 19.7 3.8 84.6 90.0
—E——F 2012 5.1 57.0 23.5 4.4 90.0

BRIAEMEHN  SHBERER T ——F
T-A=+—"HALFEERNTETXE
RERMEERAREERRERE <FHE o

In addition to the above emoluments, Mr. William P.Y. Ko received
$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 for his service as
employee of Hang Lung Properties Limited (“HLP").
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7 EBEERGHREBABZEHE @

(b) BREFALZME
EhE&emHALH = (ZF——F:
=) RARREERE (ZF—_F:
—) ARBZAESE - BEZEBM
(ZT——%F: —fu) AL ZBEewT :

7

(b)

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2012: three)

are existing directors of the Company, nil (2012: one) is ex-director

of the Company and the emoluments in respect of the remaining two

(2012: one) individuals are as follows:

NBEBEITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
we Fees - 0.2
e  REREYAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9.1 6.2
BIEAEAL Discretionary bonuses 2.0 _
AREBEIERESETEIZ M Group’s contributions to retirement scheme 0.8 0.6

11.9 7.0

AER (ZF——F: —f1) ALZBE

The emoluments of the above two (2012: one) individuals are within

NF AT &6 - the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals

2013 2012
$4,000,001 — $4,500,000 1 -
$7,000,001 - $7,500,000 - 1
$7,500,001 - $8,000,000 1 -
2 1

(c)

(d)

BRIALEBEIN  BETEFREARRA]
N (B B B0 B ) BAAE AT 81 R T X
D EIME - ARBIREEMER D Z K
0 BARE SIS M 5228 (b) #FR ©

BHEZZT—=k=F——-—F+=H
=t+T—HBLEFE SiEmELAEER
BBRITHA B NRIBIEABEBMEE
SRBREMBEREE -

(c)

(d)

In addition to the above emoluments, certain directors of the
Company were granted share options under the share option
schemes of the Company and of HLP. Details of which are
disclosed in note 28(b).

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, there
were no amounts paid to directors and senior executives above
for compensation of loss of office and inducement for joining the
Group.
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8 HmEWHEKRAZBIA

(@) HEWERAZHIEAR

8 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

BB BT E in HK$ Million 2013 2012
ARERIE Current tax

BEBNEH Hong Kong Profits Tax 582 448
NFFEREZ ZIR Over-provision in prior years (13) (14)
569 434
AR AT S HR China Income Tax 601 608
1,170 1,042

IRAETIR Deferred tax
KBEMHEZ N EE Change in fair value of investment properties 248 236
E)RE BRI EZ%  Other origination and reversal of temporary differences 149 101
&&t (FfaE21(b) Total (Note 21(b)) 397 337
THIEY M 4R5T Total income tax expense 1,567 1,379

ERNESHREBENRFEANZIGEE
REEANESZ TSR (ZF——F:
BOZTAER)AE - PRAMEHEER
FRGCEMSHRIEE P Z-tTRH (ZT—=
FBOZZTH) stERFRABRAER
REAREFE - BB RN PE A
OB ECEERA—TSENF—F—
HRELEZABAMEEZKREHERED
2 ABRTEIRFTEH -

(b) BE—Z—=F+-_A=+—HLHF
EzRhEECEMBELE TR
Erx (T ——F:HEXHE_-_TF
“HEL) BRFAREAELER
FA o

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. China Income
Tax mainly represents China Corporate Income Tax calculated at 25%
(2012: 25%) and China withholding income tax at the applicable
rates. A withholding tax of 5% is levied on the Hong Kong companies
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign
investment enterprises in mainland China earned after January 1, 2008.

(b) Share of joint ventures’ tax credit for the year ended December
31, 2013 of $17 million (2012: charge of $23 million) is included
in the share of profits of joint ventures.
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8 HmEWBRAZBE @)

(c) MiIASZ I R B A A E

8 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT (continued)
BEH  (©

Reconciliation between actual tax expense and profit before

)] taxation at applicable tax rates:

ABEEBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BREL AT R A Profit before taxation 10,128 11,309
BGETADEAMABEBR R E 2518 Tax on profit before taxation at applicable rates 1,994 2,181
JEFEFRRRUMA Z FRIBR 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (490) (822)
RS R 2 FRIETE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 114 75
EE A 2 B EE R A A Tax effect of tax losses utilized and other deductible

AIHRE R EE R 2 FIEE temporary differences (127) (118)
RERZBBER 2 RIBRF 2 Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses 74 66
Hity Others 15 11
DEFEEREZR Over-provision in prior years (13) (14)
ERBIES H Actual tax expense 1,567 1,379

(d) R EEHME2EKETARNER

HEBIHE -
9 MKEREGHAR
B 5 1 0

Mt+AaE—-—T=a8T (=
+—EBZE—F/HE&8x) -

BARAFBRERAZ 4
= — — E'E :

comprehensive income for the year.

9 NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

statements of the Company.

(d) There is no tax effect relating to the components of the other

Net profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of $1,513 million
(2012: $1,101 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
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10 BRE
@) F=FERE
KN E BT

10 DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends attributable to the year

in HK$ Million 2013 2012

EEMMEIREDBREESR TN

(ZF—=F: +A)

Interim dividend declared and paid of 19 cents
(2012: 19 cents) per share 256 256

REEE H B ER R AR S8/~ —1l Final dividend of 61 cents (2012: 60 cents) per share

(Z2—=%F : X+

proposed after the end of the reporting period 823 810

1,079 1,066

B/\ A 4+
N 1%1:1
—+ /o
I\‘D?é-_

ZBEfE -

HHBEBMKZ MRS - WEEZR A The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not
H

been recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) BE—_ZFT——F+—-_A=+—HI1tE (b) The final dividend of $810 million (calculated based on 60 cents

EZN\E—TETARBKE BEE per share with issued share capital as at dividend pay-out date)
A& 7S L0 IR & B 2 B 31T AR5t for the year ended December 31, 2012 was approved and paid
EYR=—_E—=F+=-_A=+—HI1t in the year ended December 31, 2013 (2012: $513 million).

FEHAEARRE(ZZE — = F:

AfE—T=E8T) °

11 BREF 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) PREARREERAF JYIRA T84 (@) The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
sHE on the following data:
NBEEBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FUTEEREARREERA 2 &5 Earnings for calculation of basic and diluted earnings
GIEY A ar)) per share (net profit attributable to shareholders) 4,557 5,262
RnHEE
Number of shares
LBEBRETE in Million 2013 2012
AT EFIREREF 2 B hnkE Weighted average number of shares used in
FEHg calculating basic earnings per share 1,350 1,349
BEBSER 2 BERD 2 FE — Effect of dilutive potential shares — share options 7 9

A HRE

PR SRR 2R 2 IR 5
Y

Weighted average number of shares used in
calculating diluted earnings per share 1,357 1,358
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11 8RER @) 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) PBEEEEARMF (TEIEEEWE  (b) The underlying net profit attributable to shareholders which

NEEEE - WM HEEEERIE R excluded changes in fair value of investment properties net of
FEVERR AR ) ZETEMT ¢ related deferred tax and non-controlling interests, is calculated
as follows:
B BESTHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
PR FEAE 4L 7 Net profit attributable to shareholders 4,557 5,262
WA N EES) 252 Effect of changes in fair value of investment properties (2,651) (3,057)
HEEEERE 2 Effect of corresponding deferred tax 248 236
BETENKEMEZ Effect of change in fair value of investment properties of
NHEEH & joint ventures (243) (145)
(2,646) (2,966)
VIR Non-controlling interests 1,160 1,268
(1,486) (1,698)
% B e { EE A 4 A Underlying net profit attributable to shareholders 3,071 3,564

BB R (R BE AR AR T E 7 ER AT A ¢ The earnings per share based on underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders are:

2013 2012
HAR Basic $2.27 $2.64
by | Diluted $2.26 $2.62
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12 EEEE — &8

12 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP

BRERPREME
AW Investment
Investment  properties under Hh BF
B RE T E in HK$ Million properties development Others Total
BRAESEE - Cost or valuation:
MN-—_E——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 101,833 23,613 575 126,021
bE 3 F5 3K Exchange adjustment 34 (37) (1) (4)
NE Additions 409 5614 92 6,115
He Disposals (3,054) = (19) (3,073)
AN EE Increase in fair value 3,057 - - 3,057
A /(EE) Transfer 4,708 (4,708) - -
BN BEFHECZEE Reclassification to assets
held for sale (885) = (82) (967)
R-ZE——F+-_H=+—H At December 31, 2012 and
;rE=_ZT—=F—H—H January 1, 2013 106,102 24,482 565 131,149
DEE 5, 58 X Exchange adjustment 1,602 767 6 2,375
NE Additions 752 9,951 77 10,780
HeE Disposals (11) = (4) (15)
ANFEZ DN Increase in fair value 2,651 - - 2,651
wE A /() Transfer 4,722 (4,722) = =
R-EBE—=%+=-A=+—H At December 31, 2013 115,818 30,478 644 146,940
REHTE ¢ Accumulated depreciation:
R-—ZE——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 = = 349 349
PE i 35k Exchange adjustment - - (1) (1)
REEHE Charge for the year = = 38 38
A & ] Written back on disposals = = (7) (7)
BN ERHEZEE Reclassification to assets
held for sale (69) (69)
MRZE——F+-_H=+—H At December 31, 2012 and
r—ZT—=%—H—H January 1, 2013 = = 310 310
BEE 5, A Exchange adjustment - - 2 2
NEEHE Charge for the year - - 40 40
Ffask==24E) Written back on disposals - - (3) (3)
R-B—=F+=-—B=+—H At December 31, 2013 - - 349 349
BRTESHA : Net book value:
N-—EBE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013 115,818 30,478 295 146,591
MN_E——F+-_A=+—8H At December 31, 2012 106,102 24,482 255 130,839
EEEEZKAED Cost or valuation of the fixed assets
HEDT : is made up as follows:
—ZE—-=%+-H=+—H December 31, 2013
fH1E Valuation 115,818 30,478 - 146,296
KB Cost - - 644 644
115,818 30,478 644 146,940
—E——H+=—HA=+—H December 31, 2012
HE Valuation 106,102 24,482 - 130,584
XAME Cost - - 565 565
106,102 24,482 565 131,149
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12 EEEE — &8 &)

(a) MELTFEFTE

(i) R-FEER
TREINAEEL TN EERIZAY
B EMREMERERFPREYWENE
& WAREHKFRS 13 A EZ 25T T
ATHAFEBRSEA=ARA - AT
BEZRBHETI2EGER EZFRBANE A
TEOTEBREREEM - ST :

- F—RHE: EERAE-—RBATE
EMQTE BIRFERKBHEREE
SR ERNEEM S AL HERE

- FRMEE: ERF-_RBATEE
MR E BABEENBATE  EX
ERES —AWNER . BB ABREX
TABENBATE - TABERHAT
EREMSBENBATE

- BEREE: FREATTRRBAT
EHBOATE

12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and investment properties under development measured
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into a three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
value measurement”. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified and determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique is as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

R-B—=F+_A=+—HZRAFEFE

Fair Value measurement as December 31, 2013

E— F-W® B
B RETE in HK$ Million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
KB Investment properties - 115,818 -
BRERPIREYE Investment properties under development - - 30,478

BAKEIZBR  EAFEBRAZELER
BT OARERR - FR - (REED+EE=-T
“HETHNEREYS - BEHBYRSNAE
FHERTRENZERZREMEIN
W B Aty N FAE JE R 5 -

AEBEZRENERBERTPEREVEER
R -=Ft+ - A=t—HHEFEF-KFH
HETHEREXRERARARZEMER
RIE (EXRE) REBELERMEESE
ETHE EEEERGEERKEEES
RNEPHRFEHRE R R S RET

A o

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy at the time in which they occur. During the year, except for the
transfer from investment properties under development to investment
properties of $4,722 million upon opening of Center 66 mall, there were
no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy.

The investment properties and investment properties under
development of the Group were revalued as at December 31, 2013
by Mr. Charles C.K. Chan, Registered Professional Surveyor (General
Practice), of Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with the surveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

173



B 75 R R P RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 BEEE — &8 &)

(a) MELATETE (B

(i) FE=RAFETTEERZIGELE
R@ATE

"EMFEZ AFAETIRBAE AR E M

B W2ERBFsMBHEERERNELEE

ZEMIHEIE o

(iii) FE=RRA-FETTEHEL
MNRABEAENERPREDE 2 A FE
DIRER LR AE  A2EMH LA
B2y idEBRUVREREZAF
B8 RWGER - BRI TER :

- HFMH2EEFRAZFERAREZL
MERILAEK &

- BRI MS2EERFERERZVES
BT BRI o

B = 2 T AT B 2 BN BB R B AR ) %

RAKREMERZAFE-
AEEFERZEZNE=RTAEREA
TTRHINWT

AEBEZHRBDREYEBAERBRAN
FZFTNARBE_B—TRET - EH@EF
PN BN B AR IR E B R R R ISR
MM RE L RERBAER o
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12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of properties (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using income
capitalization approach with reference to current market rents and
capitalization rates using market data.

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties under development in mainland
China is determined by using direct comparison approach, with
reference to comparable market transactions as available in the market
to derive the fair value of the property assuming it was completed and,
wherever appropriate, deducted the following items:

— Estimated development cost to be expended to complete the
properties that would be incurred by a market participant; and

— Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated development cost or profit margin, the lower
the fair value of investment properties under construction.

The main Level 3 unobservable inputs used by the Group are as
follows:

The total estimated development costs of the Group’s investment
properties under development ranged from $3.9 billion to $21.4 billion.
The estimates are largely consistent with the budgets developed
internally by the Group based on management experience and
knowledge of market conditions.
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12 EEEE — &8 @) 12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
(a) MELATETE (B (a) Fair value measurement of properties (Continued)
(iii) B=RAFEGTEHNEL (&) (iii)  Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

FRNZESE—H AT E 2L EES  The movements during the year in the balances of these Level 3 fair

SR value measurements are as follows:

BRAREYE —

AR B A

Investment properties under

A EETETE in HK$ Million development — Mainland China
R-ZZE—=%F—H—H At January 1, 2013 24,482
M H AR Exchange adjustment 767
NE Additions 9,951
NFAEE N Increase in fair value -
EHEE R Transfer to Level 2 (4,722)
R-E—=%+=-H=+—H At December 31, 2013 30,478
Bt AlBme 2 F W iR%E Total gains for the year included in profit or loss -

IEYERERPKEYSE 2 ATEFHE  Fair value adjustments of investment properties and investment
RIEAWEERRUATIEEYE Y AFEE  properties under development is recognized in “Increase in fair value of

] —IEFER -

investment properties” in the consolidated income statement.

(b) MEZEREFEINWOT : (b) An analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:
BRPIEEYE
LAY Investment properties

Investment properties under development
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012 2013 2012
HE R Long leases in Hong Kong 35,618 34,440 - _
EBEBIMEHAMI  Long leases outside Hong Kong 1,330 1,282 835 797
BHE A B 32 Medium term leases in Hong Kong 21,070 20,464 - =
EBBINR I Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 57,800 49916 29,643 23,685
115,818 106,102 30,478 24,482
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12 EEEE — &8 %)

12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)

(c) "&=EHMETEEEMFMEEIE () The net book value of other fixed assets of the Group included
MAEBN RSB ZEE s TR E long leases of $9 million (2012: $9 million) in respect of land and
SEYhagar (ZE—=—F: LA& building held in Hong Kong, medium term leases of $8 million
T0) AR BEBEINAR M RZER 2 (2012: $8 million) and long leases of $48 million (2012: $35
THREZEYNBEET(ZT—= million) in respect of land and buildings held outside Hong Kong
F: N \BEBL) MARBEEFER 2 respectively.

THwEkEEYOFNANEBEL(ZF

—ZF:=FTHASL) °

MEREWZBIRREMEZHEW Property leasing revenue includes gross rental income from
ANzt +—E—Faax (== investment properties of $7,216 million (2012: $6,711 million).
—ZF: XTEE-—F—8B8T)

(d) AEFERELEBAESHAEYE -2 (d) The Group leases out its properties under operating leases.
EHH—RYTEBA_ZRHF Hm Leases typically run for an initial period of two to five years, with
N ERGRIBEY  EREEFHEM some having the option to renew, at which time all terms are
ElEZ - RHBEY B E2HES renegotiated. Long term leases contain rent review or adjustment
SN ARES IR MAERETE clauses and the Group has a regular proportion of its leases up
HE—FEHHNELOEmERD - &F for renewal each year. Certain leases include contingent rentals
HAOBENRAL  H2BREPL 2 calculated with reference to the revenue of tenants.

AMERFE °
NEER AEBRIKEMERER At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total future
RIREYZE  BETIREZEER minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases
ExVEWZ ARBSEZENT : in respect of investment properties were as follows:
B EBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
—FR Within 1 year 6,006 5,294
—FREAFA After 1 year but within 5 years 8,174 7,826
hFE After 5 years 1,992 2,217
16,172 15,337
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13 B AR 13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
NS
Company
BB BEEBITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
JE LR - BANE Unlisted shares, at cost 181 181
I EENGIE R Amounts due from subsidiaries 15,369 14,820
15,550 15,001

TE2MB AR ZFABE R ENHIE34S

TREYBREERMEARAR ([1ERZH

|

J(AEBERETEREAIFERER)

MER - TIFHERMER AR 2HE
SHAIZ 2

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The following table lists out the information relating to Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“HLP”) in which the Group has material non-controlling
interest (“NCI”). The summarized financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NEEBEBTHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
NEEE R 2 IEmRER B D NCI percentage at the end of the reporting period 47.5% 49.3%
ERBEE Non-current assets 139,399 124,008
mMENEE Current assets 42,881 43,856
mEEE Current liabilities (8,267) (6,316)
FRBAE Non-current liabilities (42,846) (37,570)
BEFAE Net assets 131,167 123,978
IR FE R BR B Carrying amount of NCI 62,304 61,121
EERE Turnover 9,138 7,372
REE A Profit for the year 7,757 8,920
AEEEHE BT Total comprehensive income for the year 10,433 9,070
DB R JEEAR I S Profit allocated to NCI 3,685 4,398
B IHERERR S Dividend paid to NCI 1,623 1,169
FIRER Net cash flow:
RELKE S generated from operating activities 5,156 5,033
BRI EES used in investing activities (896) (2,524)
REME S generated from financing activities 559 5,863
(a) EUMBARZBEAEER 28 % (@) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

(b)

BEEERY  MARHZSZHEAR
AR+ —BAARTERE - #IIEE
MEEE °

ENHBARREREER 8 &
BEEERD  MARHZSZHEAR
AR+ —EARTEEE - #INMEE
mEBAE-

with no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
assets as they are not expected to be recoverable within the next
twelve months.

(b) Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free with
no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
liabilities as they are not expected to be repaid within the next
twelve months.
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14 &L ¥RER

14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

£E NGl
Group Company
BB BEEBTHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012 2013 2012
IE ETRD - BKAE Unlisted shares, at cost - - 5 5
[EMREEEE Share of net assets 2,152 1,740 - _
2,152 1,740 5
JEUN A & B EEFIE Amounts due from joint ventures 846 514 2
FERtE EEFIE Amounts due to joint ventures (7) (7) (7) (7)
2,991 2,247 - _

A2 EEFRAREEM - UHHH
i B REEEERY - M REBHZEFR
EAGRAK T EARERE - BIIMEE
mEAE -

TZALRZHBAERINMHEIS - K
SERNERLTEANSELE 2 RN
BERMEBEMBEEMBRNT

Amounts due to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-bearing at market
rate with no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
liabilities as it is not expected to be repayable within the next twelve
months.

Details of principal joint ventures are set out in note 35. The aggregate
financial information related to the Group’s share of joint ventures that
are not individually material are as follows:

BB EETAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FEMEN B EE Non-current assets 3,024 2,317
MENEEE Current assets 267 172
ERHBEE Non-current liabilities (1,067) (670)
mEaE Current liabilities (72) (79)
BEFE Net assets 2,152 1,740
BB ST E in HK$ Million 2013 2012
= Turnover 275 236
REE G N2 mWzE42%8  Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 431 276
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15 HthEE

15 OTHER ASSETS

£E
Group
BB R EITETE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
LETRE - RME Listed investments at market value
- B — Hong Kong 70 67
— BBIRIN — Outside Hong Kong 10 _
80 67
BB LEMHEREER Unlisted held-to-maturity investments
#®%E& (Mt () in Hong Kong (Note (a)) - 450
BRTFIELHIRENT] Advances to unlisted investee companies
SR less provision 20 9
mEE (M (b)) Intangible assets (Note (b)) 1,182 1,182
1,282 1,710
B BIHAE AR —E2EE  Less: Unlisted held-to-maturity investments
JEETRERIEA in Hong Kong with maturity
& (KizE(a) less than one year (Note (a)) - (452)
1,282 1,258

GEE

(a) AEEFAFLHESFKE  WRER_T—=%F
T—ARZE—=F+_AFH - KEFRTFZ
BLtE(CT——F: —HABEE_HAE) 2E

Notes:

B EGE - BEERFFIRE ° upon maturity.
(b) B EERAREAN -_ZZTNFE+LA—BHZARE (b) Intangible assets represent goodwill arising from the Group’s additions in equity

MEBAREEBEZ RAERMELZHE - N
FH - AREE DB RE R W E S R ERRE

its recoverable amount and no impairment was recorded.

(@) The Group held investments in unlisted bonds with maturity in November 2013 and
December 2013. The effective yield of the bonds was 2.7% (2012: 1.6% to 2.9%)
per annum, payable quarterly or semi-annually. All unlisted bonds were redeemed

interests in its subsidiary, HLP, for transactions before July 1, 2009. At the end of the
reporting period, an impairment test was performed by comparing the goodwill with
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16 BERBITER 16 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
£E
Group
BB R EITETE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
TEHATF IR Time deposits 36,890 37,474
RITEN Cash at banks 2,814 2,709
SEEBTEIRRERIRS R Cash and deposits with banks in the consolidated
IRITTER statement of financial position 39,704 40,183
B =18 B &R HIR Less: Bank deposits with maturity greater than three months (595) (8,111)
RITIFX
FEBSMERMIAE K Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
REEEY cash flow statement 39,109 32,072

REER  A"EEZRS RIETHEZILTFE  Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and deposits with

HFRGE_ERHE (ZZF——4F : —2Zh—  banks were interest-bearing at an average rate of 2.5% (2012: 2.2%)
B)Z 8 - EEEEES M per annum with currencies denominated in:
£H
Group
BB EITAHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
SR Hong Kong Dollars equivalent of:
ARKEE Renminbi 37,100 36,913
ot Hong Kong Dollars 2,287 2,223
ETT United States Dollars 317 1,047
39,704 40,183

KEFZEAEARBERITEIABMENRA  The Group holds Renminbi bank deposits to meet its ongoing payment
NitrERIER BFENNREE obligations in relation to its development projects in mainland China.

HeRBRTTEANBRTEZRREMMESE  After deducting cash and deposits from bank loans and other
% NEBRGSEHZEREFE (ZE—=  borrowings, the net debt (2012: net cash) position of the Group at the

FFRE) T end of the reporting period was as follows:
£E
Group
B BESTE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
RITEFREEMEE (HizE19) Bank loans and other borrowings (Note 19) 45,024 37,645
B e RIFR Less: Cash and deposits (39,704) (40,183)
SFEE/(RE) Net Debt/(Cash) 5,320 (2,538)
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17 EWERR R H WK 17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(a) BEitAEWEEZ N EfpEl = 2 EWEE (@) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables

K (CABIERE AER) BRE DT ¢ (based on the due date) with the following terms:
5=
Group
NBEBEITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
HEA R —EA A Current and within 1 month 1,834 47
—Z==1A 1 — 3 months 14
=@EAUE Over 3 months 9 4
1,857 55

RERBEHEHBUWNEKN - KEB 215 The balance of bad and doubtful debts is insignificant. The details on

BURFFIBHE AR M EE30(c) ° the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 30(c).

(b) AEBEBHEMmEWKRZBFE=E—F (b) Included in other receivables of the Group is deposit of land
NEBT(ZE——F: =ZEBEN\A acquisition in mainland China of $318 million (2012: $308
B RPBERMEE L 2 M - million).

18 FEW* 18 PROPERTIES FOR SALE

&5
Group
BB ST E in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FERREBDYE — RHMZ  Properties under development for sale — long leases
- B — Hong Kong 1,662 1,296
FEDERYE — R HIME  Completed properties for sale — medium term leases
- &% — Hong Kong 4,051 4,839
— BB — Outside Hong Kong 4 4
4,055 4,843
5,717 6,139
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19 RITERRHMEE 19 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
NEER - EEFRTERREMES 2 Atthe end of the reporting period, bank loans and other borrowings
BRHEAWNE ¢ were unsecured and repayable as follows:
9L
Group
B EBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
RITER (FI3E (@) Bank loans (Note (a))
—F N BNER Within 1 year or on demand 1,657 1,113
—FREZFR After 1 year but within 2 years 16,663 1,378
MEERERFRN After 2 years but within 5 years 15,186 26,915
AFRE Over 5 years 4,519 2,724
38,025 32,130
HMEE (5E (b)) Other borrowings (Note (b))
MERERFEA After 2 years but within 5 years 375 =
AERE Over 5 years 6,915 5,799
7,290 5,799
45,315 37,929
B REESE 2 BB A Less: unamortized front end fees (291) (284)
RITERREMEEHALEE Total bank loans and other borrowings 45,024 37,645
HARENBET Amount due within 1 year included under current liabilities (1,657) (1,113)
—FRE|HRFIE
43,367 36,532
BoaE - Notes:
(@) FA MARTERHREZNEZELZNE (a) All bank loans are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 0.8% to 7.9% (2012: 0.6%
(ZZ—=F : T EE/\BRE) FHEFE - to 8.5%) per annum during the year.
REB L EFREZINPEZLRE - ZZHER Certain of the Group'’s borrowings are attached with financial covenants which require
HERAREBNEMEEZEEBREAEFETS that at any time, the Group’s consolidated tangible net worth is not less than and the
BERREELMGEEREERFEZLZETEERN ratio of borrowings to consolidated tangible net worth is not more than certain required
HEKFE - FR REBE TR ETZEHLYIH levels. During the year, all these covenants have been complied with by the Group.
K o
R-E—=F+_A=+—H A&EEHH At December 31, 2013, the Group had $8,781 million (2012: $8,597 million)
NtT+EEBNTFT—EBEBT (ZE——F: \+RHE committed undrawn banking facilities.

NFEEET) RBANRITEHEE -
(b) ERMEZ —HE2EHENKB AR R —EEE (b) A wholly-owned subsidiary of HLP has a US$3 billion (2012: US$3 billion) Medium

=HEET (ZE—=—F: =+{EER) 2P HBHE Term Note Program (the “Program”). At the end of the reporting period, the bonds
BetEl ([51281)) - REER X REBEEHEEIT have been issued with coupon rates ranged from 2.95% to 4.75% (2012: 3.55% to
BTEE  ERFEEA—HHAEENE+RHE 4.75%) per annum under the Program.

(ZZ——F : ZZAAEENE+RE) -
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20 ENRFRH A AR 20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

£E

Group
LB BEETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
JERT RN EEHE A (MiEE(a)) Creditors and accrued expenses (Note (a)) 4,347 3,547
BlEE (BIFE (b)) Deposits received (Note (b)) 1,903 1,693
6,250 5,240

BT Notes:

(a) ENRREFEBRARERIAR—FATEENZ (a) Creditors and accrued expenses include retention money payable of $508 million
REBEFRERBEZTNBEL(ZT —Z4F: (2012: $335 million) which is not expected to be settled within one year.
—R=FHRE&T) -

(b) EIZE T+ —EBATHEBL(ZE—ZF: (b) Deposits received of $1,155 million (2012: $992 million) are not expected to be settled
NEALTFZEET) BHER—FATEENN - within one year.

Dt AEMEZREMBENI ZEMBEZ  Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the

BRI - following aging analysis:
£E
Group
LB BEE T in HK$ Million 2013 2012
—{E& A N EIEE Due within 1 month 2,693 2,509
=18 A& E Due after 3 months 548 367
3,241 2,876

21 RiFEaMBRRREZHIE 21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) FFHIE (a) Current taxation

£

Group
LB E ST in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BT BB Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 366 207
AR TS A A Provision for China Income Tax 251 234
DREEE ZEMTBFER  Hong Kong Profits Tax payable relating to prior years 29 5
646 446
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21 REEHBERREKREZHIE @)

21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) EFEHIE (b) Deferred taxation
£H
Group
NEEBEBITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FEFRIARE Deferred tax liabilities 10,637 9,944
BIETIR B E Deferred tax assets (19) (19)
RERIEB BEFE Net deferred tax liabilities 10,618 9.925

RIEEHBRAR LR ZELEREA

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognized in the

&/(BE) WARLRERNZ BEIT - consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

BB BETTE in HK$ Million Rk
LRI E RABEE
Depreciation BEEZ
allowances in 18RS 25
excess of LA Future
related Revaluation benefit of Hitb 4B
RERIEEER Deferred tax arising from: depreciation  of properties tax losses Others Total
R-E——H%—HF—H At January 1, 2012 1,365 8,173 (45) 99 9,592
TABE 5 5 N F0BR Charged to exchange reserve - (2) - - (2)
BRI /(BEA) Charged/(Credited) to profit
(Fft5¥8(a)) or loss (Note 8(a)) 76 236 30 (5) 337
EX vy By Reclassification to assets/
Hj%ZQE/ Bff liabilities held for sale 8) - 6 - )
N-ZE——F+=-8 At December 31, 2012 and
=—t+—BR=-_T—=4F January 1, 2013 1,433 8,407 (9) 94 9,925
—H—H
TARE 3 E BB A Credited to exchange reserve 34 263 = (1) 296
RIEE AR Charged to profit or loss
(Hf5E8(a)) (Note 8(a)) 98 248 6 45 397
R-EBE—=F At December 31, 2013 1,565 8,918 3) 138 10,618
+=-—HA=+—H

[t EBZBEREMAIBERECEETER
M2 RABEEAMEER Z HERERIARE -
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Included in “Others” is mainly deferred tax liabilities recognized in
respect of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in

mainland China.
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21 REEHBERREKREZHIE @)

(c) RERZELEREEE
REBEARE THB AR S EHHE LR
W=+ N \EZFTREELT(ZZE—Z=F:
—THEZ—BET) UBEBMEENE
EREEEFHER  AAR-ZE—=F
+ZA=+—H TREEHEEHEEEN
ARERMENDIFE - LEBBEL
BT TS B R IR B T B A AR 3 R g by -
i B A R B RS B 1B B AB R B 5t
FEBRAFIREF -

21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

The Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses of $3,825 million (2012: $3,501 million) sustained in the
operations of certain subsidiaries as the availability of future taxable
profits against which the assets can be utilized is not probable at
December 31, 2013. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong operations
do not expire under current tax legislation. The tax losses arising from
the operations in mainland China expire five years after the relevant
accounting year end date.

22 A 22 SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
RHEE BAESE f&inERE &N
Number of Amount of Number of Amount of
shares share capital shares share capital
(BBR) (BB (B&K) (B&7T)
(Million) ($Million) (Million) ($Million)
SETE Authorized
SREE—TT Shares of $1 each 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
EEITREE Issued and fully paid
Rn—H—H At January 1 1,350 1,350 1,348 1,348
R 10 BRfERT &I Shares issued under share
BT 2R option scheme - _ 2 2
Wt+=—B=+—H At December 31 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
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23 f##E&

23 RESERVES

(a) &H (@) The Group
HibfAE
Other reserves
EERH
BR  KRESH ERE HithE
&1 FEO i Employee LA AN RE
HSE Capital Investment MERfE#  share-based S Other A ARk
Share redemption revaluation Exchange compensation  General capital #8%8  Retained Total
B RETAE in HK$ Million premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total profits  reserves
N-IE——F At January 1, 2012 2,435 26 (2) 3,503 294 275 1,649 8,180 50,982 59,162
—H—H
KEEGF Profit for the year - - - - - = = - 5262 5,262
FTIREAFME  Increase in fair value
-yl of listed investments - - 11 _ _ _ _ 11 _ 11
N B Exchange difference
NAEIBRIEEA arising from translation
ZIERER of overseas subsidiaries - - - 98 - - - 98 - 98
ANEFELEIZE  Total comprehensive
potc) income for the year - - 11 98 - - - 109 5262 5371
EEERERESE  Final dividends in
respect of previous
financial year - - - - - - - - (513)  (513)
AREEZHRHPESE  Interim dividends in
respect of current
financial year - - - - - - - - (256)  (256)
FITRAD Issue of shares 15 = = - - . - 15 _ 15
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 4 - - = (8) = = (4) 113 109
EAEEE—R  Change in non-controlling
HEARZ interests arising from
A& AEE AN increase of the Group’s
E IR E shareholding in a
=2 ) subsidiary - - - - - - (14) (14) - (14)
MN-TE——4F At December 31, 2012
+=-A=+—H and January 1, 2013 2,454 26 9 3,601 286 275 1,635 8,286 55,588 63,874
k=Z—=%
—H—H
NEEHF Profit for the year - - - - - - - — 4557 4557
FTIREAFE  Increase in fair value of
Z¥E 00 listed investments = _ 13 _ _ _ _ 13 _ 3
HEGINHT R Exchange difference
ARIRIBEA arising from translation
ZERER of overseas subsidiaries - - - 1,719 - - - 1,719 - 1,719
AEEEHE Total comprehensive
Was4aEg income for the year - - 13 1,719 - - - 1,732 4,557 6,289
FFERMRE  Final dividends in
respect of previous
financial year - - - - - - - - (810)  (810)
AREEZHRHALE  Interim dividends in
respect of current
financial year - - - - - - - - (256)  (256)
BT Issue of shares 2 = - - - - _ 2 _ 2
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 1 - - - 66 - - 67 22 89
HAAELEBEAE—FR  Change in non-controlling
WEBA R Z interests arising from
RELE i 2E A increase of the Group’s
IR AR shareholding in a
subsidiary - - - = = - 34 34 - 34
R-TB—=F At December 31, 2013 2,457 26 22 5,320 352 275 1,669 10,121 59,101 69,222
+=A=+-—H
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23 f#E @)

23 RESERVES (continued)

(b) AF (b) The Company
HihfEE
Other reserves
BB
AR fEREE
fxtn  FEREE Employee il RE
1B Capital ~ share-based  f###H% wmAl KA
Share redemption compensation  General #8%8  Retained Total
SR E T E in HK$ Million premium reserve reserve  reserve Total profits  reserves
R-_E——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 2,435 26 52 862 3,375 9,549 12,924
RNEFEmA R 2 E W Profit and total comprehensive
ia=g income for the year - - — - - 1,101 1,101
LFEERARKRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (513) (513)
REZHHRKRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - - - - (256)  (256)
BIThRD Issue of shares 15 = - - 15 _ 15
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 4 = 4) — _ _ _
N-E— :E At December 31, 2012 and
+=—A= January 1, 2013 2,454 26 48 862 3,390 9,881 13,271
—E—=F— ﬂ =]
RNEF A R 2 E Profit and total comprehensive
1ERE income for the year = - - - - 1513 1513
LFEERARKRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (810)  (810)
REEFHRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - - - - (256)  (256)
AT Issue of shares 2 = = - 2 - 2
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 1 - (1) = - _ _
N-EE—=% At December 31, 2013 2,457 26 47 862 3,392 10,328 13,720
+=A=+—H
rEERZTE—=F+=H :+— =] E’\M% The retained profits for the Group at December 31, 2013 included

BafepE _EBATHES T (=

F:—RBNA\TA<EBEET) E’\J#EV%‘EW%’A subsidiaries in mainland China.

CIP&- YN

$264 million (2012: $186 million) in respect of statutory reserves of the
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23 f#E @)

(b) AF ()

BB H B R A A E R~ iR RIZ
BB (RAERD) EO+NZBEREN+ A
FREE  c REBHEBEOENEERR
HA N EES AT EY RS %EE
SARIEF SE1()(2) 2 & 5B R IR o (B 3
BEERESINHBARNSBREEEY
PE 248 o MM L(v) Bt 0 B E RO
(8 548 B0 38 B 1% B 14 R I8 7T 15 2 IR 1D
MY DATE - EREESRERDEF -
BAI#SIE o 8 REEE IR IR
EREBA—REANBRA R 5
WITEM K ARY A EE Y EEFE
ZEE o

RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H8 ' ARQF
AES>ETRRAR2EHRESBBLE—7B
—+—EBATET(ZE—=—F: —FEZ
tEENF=E&T) -

BEAXEH
AEENEAERRRZAZBERRE
REBREFEZE  URRRIEHERK
REMBOHERENE  BARASERAE
BSRE -

AEERBEBEERRITREEELEEANE
B NERREBEKFAIEHRNRER
RO EEFEE AR EROES MREZ
MG TE YRBRAKEZEBEGR
RBRBECEHHENGEERAE -

AEEEBRFREEL R (FERREL X
KETABRAELR) MRERENTR » AE
BRI ERKAOMEAEREREERE
B FERERTERMEMESHRR
T RIRTTFR - RE S AR RS M IFE

B iR o

188 fEr&EmAEE AR HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve are governed by Section 48B and Section 49H of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance respectively. The investment
revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change on the fair
value of available-for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
in note 1(i)(2). The exchange reserve comprises the exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of overseas subsidiaries. The employee share-based compensation
reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are
yet to be exercised, as explained in note 1(v). The general reserve was
derived from retained profits and is distributable. The other capital
reserve represents any difference between the cost of the additional
investment and the carrying amount of the net assets acquired at the
date of exchange when acquiring an additional non-controlling interest
in a existing subsidiary.

The aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company at December 31,
2013 was $11,190 million (2012: $10,743 million).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders, and to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in the light of changes in the
Group’s business portfolio and economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its leveraging ratio
(net debt to equity and debt to equity) and cash flow requirements,
taking into account its future financial obligations and commitments.
Net debt represents bank loans and other borrowings less cash and
deposits with banks. Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and
non-controlling interests.
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23 f#E @)
(b) AT &)

23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

N-F—=F+—A=+—H &A&EE> Net debt to equity ratio and debt to equity ratio as at December 31,
HEERELLERGEBRELEERD R A 2013 were 3.9% (2012: net cash position) and 33.0% (2012: 29.0%),
BROZ=—"8Nh (ZFTE——%F : FHEL/KFE) respectively. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
EESZ=1=(=ZE—=—%F : BH 22—+ toexternally imposed capital requirements.

) o AR B SHEFA B A7) I &&= H H)

BEREANF R AR

24 FERER

24 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

IEEIRES AHEMIRERAER (R+=A Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests and the share
=+—R) FrEHEENNE AR  of profit or loss attributable to other shareholders in respect of the
= N E(E R R sk B8 - JEIE R RS v subsidiaries not wholly-owned by the Group as at December 31. Details

25 REKEXK2RE

of movement of non-controlling interests are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

25 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

NBEBEITAHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BR SR A Profit before taxation 10,128 11,309
TR Adjustments for:

HEREMEKRE Gain on disposal of investment properties 9) (2,149)
RITH BULA Bank interest income (967) (703)
JEEmEHERHARREFR S A Interest income from unlisted held-to-maturity investments (11) (19)
JEETIREER ZIRE WA Dividend income from unlisted investments (11) (3)
Hi5E A Finance costs 549 458
e Depreciation 40 38
HEEMETEERSE Loss on disposal of other fixed assets 1 12
WEWEZ ANTEZIEN Increase in fair value of investment properties (2,651) (3,057)
FEIERE RN Share of profits of joint ventures (431) (276)
EEREEH Employee share-based payments 164 233
FEMEZRD Decrease in properties for sale 408 20
JFE UG BR 30 N2 EL b e W 5k 2 3% 40 Increase in trade and other receivables (1,801) (23)
e R BT E R 2100 Increase in creditors and accrued expenses 559 211
2ige 7 a0 Increase in deposits received 179 168
RELEXRB RS Cash generated from operations 6,147 6,219
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26 AEE 26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REERZSHABERT ¢ At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities were as follows:
N
Company
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
T B A TS 2 RTT Guarantees given to banks to secure credit facilities
SEMmMRMHE 2 ER drawn by subsidiaries 10,080 7,960

RAmtEGHB AR ZEEREMEETT The Company has not recognized any deferred income for the
FEEIE® 7 ERERTMELEWR A - Bi%  guarantees given in respect of borrowings and other bank facilities for
CEERERBITEEZATFEE AR ST  subsidiaries as their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their

EAKXEBAE (ZE——F &) o transaction price was $Nil (2012: $Nil).
27 &I 27 COMMITMENTS
REE A MANIBHERTIRZEARAYE  Atthe end of the reporting period, capital commitments not provided for
(N in the financial statements were as follows:
e
Group
B BESBTE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
B4 Contracted for 5,252 5,527
ERERERRL Authorized but not contracted for 44,031 29,344
49,283 34,871

FHiEEFEAEGRAER AT EAMZ  The above commitments include mainly the land costs and construction
BT ERISEMESEEL Y TR A related costs to be incurred in respect of the Group’s development of its
N ESEFRRERK AN o investment properties in various cities in mainland China.
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28 EERT

(@) BRI

AEEE ARIERR T RERRERASH
B HHET2AER—MBYARER
ANEE WHEREGERER AL
B EESHES -

EBEREEHREEZEAFe2ETE
DLER BRESLIRREFEFEMAFR
TR ERENA 2 EESANEBEHEA
RUNZETE - HERRZHERTIBAGE
BES2HHERN  AEEASTHEHEHKTE
MERITABREEES CREERBAE
ERERP o AEE A #8212 ftF0Rk4
HMEZ - BFAAERIL &S X EDR
R AEEBRFRZERBERE B
—F—BER(ZE—=ZF:Z=FT—88&
L) MBAREBES 2 ZRERSEREA
B8 (ZE—=F: —B88x)°

—IEEKETRFIEAEEE ([BES
FTEl]) B W AR S
M-EEXREESHIZEEZBABHAK
AERA-ZBRTT) 2BH2AlEH®
R e KRB HRE2H K AEE
BREEBCEFPIIAREEBEFEIANCER
s  AEERFREL ZABSHER
wEANEET (CE——F :WHET) -

HRARE ZRREE—HERER
SRR & R 1) BV B SR AR KT & (B RIRET
g BEENFERABEEHEZKE
BRMER - MEEE R —RIEEE2ER
FRAFT X BEREE -

RAREFBRAMSEEB 2B AR -
HES TP BRE BT L I 2 BIKE
FMEtEl ([HBERKERETEI]) 2K E - Z
EhEANMHBARIMEREZHE—F
- DREEZXHeEZEEABSL
e) AR B AR R A8 B AT 8 R RUAE BIR IR
BAES MR HRATRAEZS
B 3 B B R Bl 2 BT BB K 2R AR AR
ZEEZERABHEML - ZERERHBH
BRARRFREL ZHRBEA=THE
BT (CT——F:-TtHERT)

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme for
its employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group by an independent corporate trustee and managed by
professional fund managers.

Contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at a
certain percentage of employees’ basic salaries, the percentage varying
with their length of service. When an employee leaves the scheme prior
to his or her interest in the Group’s contributions being fully vested,
forfeited contributions are credited to reserves of the fund. Depending
on the level of reserves, the Group may direct the trustee to credit
dividends to members’ accounts out of the reserves of the fund. The
Group’s contributions may be reduced by the forfeited contributions,
but there was no such reduction of the Group’s contributions during the
year. Total contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to
$21 million (2012: $21 million) and forfeited sums credited to reserves
amounted to $9 million (2012: $1 million).

A master trust Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) is operated by an independent service provider. Mandatory
contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at 5%
of the employees’ monthly relevant income, up to a limit of $25,000.
The Group’s contributions will be fully and immediately vested in the
employees’ accounts as their accrued benefits in the scheme. Total
MPF contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to $4
million (2012: $4 million).

As the Group’s provident fund scheme is an MPF Exempted
Occupational Retirement Scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”), eligibility
for membership of the ORSO and MPF schemes is identical. New
employees are offered a one-off option to join either the ORSO or the
MPF scheme.

Staff in the Company’s subsidiaries operating in mainland China are
members of a retirement benefits scheme (the “Mainland RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government in mainland China. The
only obligation of the subsidiaries in mainland China is to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to Mainland RB Scheme to fund
the retirement benefits. The local municipal government in mainland
China undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of subsidiaries in mainland China.
Total contributions made by subsidiaries in mainland China for the year
amounted to $35 million (2012: $27 million).
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28 EBERH )

(b) BHOHEEF

¥N/AYT|
ARARRZEEZEF+—AZ+WAMK
N2 B EIREETEIE JEw - WA ARG
HARER I T AR E - Bt EIIERRAEE
MAAEBEERE BN RIER  BRE
WBIFTE N R Em B B R ARETE2R
Rt B S RER K -

RIBFTE - ARREER ([EFR)) B
BAEREAL (BEAKEAERNKER
AZEEBRES) REBRMHPEAREAR
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits
The Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on November 24,
2000 has expired. No further options shall be offered thereunder, but
in all other respects the provisions of the scheme shall remain in full
force and effect and all options granted prior to such expiration and not
exercised at the expiry date shall remain valid.

Under the scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
is authorized to grant options to selected participants, including
employees and directors of any company in the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group. The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Board at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares at the date of
grant and the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. The period open for
acceptance of the option and amount payable thereon, the vesting
period, the exercisable period and the number of shares subject to each
option are determined by the Board at the time of grant.

Hang Lung Properties Limited

The share option scheme adopted by the Company’s subsidiary,
HLP, on November 22, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was
terminated upon the adoption of a new share option scheme on April
18, 2012 (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”, together with the 2002
Share Option Scheme are referred to as the “Schemes”). No further
options shall be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, but
in all other respects the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect and all options granted prior to such
termination and not exercised at the date of termination shall remain
valid. The 2012 Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
10 years commencing on its adoption date and expiring on the tenth
anniversary thereof.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
Hang Lung Properties Limited (Continued)

The purposes of the Schemes are to enable HLP to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
HLP group, to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize
them to remain with HLP group and to motivate them to strive for the
future development and expansion of HLP group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in HLP.

Under the Schemes, the Board of HLP is authorized to grant options
to selected participants, including employees and directors of any
company in HLP group, subject to the terms and conditions such as
performance targets as the Board of HLP may specify on a case-by-case
basis or generally. The exercise price of the options is determined by
the Board of HLP at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of the
nominal value of HLP shares, the closing price of HLP shares at the
date of grant and the average closing price of HLP shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The period open
for acceptance of the option and amount payable thereon, the vesting
period, the exercisable period and the number of HLP shares subject
to each option are determined by the Board of HLP at the time of grant.

As at the date of this report, the total number of HLP shares available
for issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme is 297,224,253 shares,
representing 6.64% of the issued share capital of HLP. The total
number of HLP shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
(including both exercised and outstanding) granted to each participant
shall not exceed in any 12-month period 1% of HLP shares in issue.
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28 EEEF =& 28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) RIFHERER (5 (b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
1. FARRGRMEAEZZBHMAT : 1.  The movements of share options of the Company during the year
are as follows:
A& RSN B
Number of share options
RZT—=%F R=-B—=%
—A—H +=A=+—8 1TEE
B AREATEE 28U/ i RAATE &1 BRfE 2 1T1E R (%)
Outstanding on EE Outstanding on Period during Exercise
LA A January 1, BT Forfeited/ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2013 Exercised Lapsed 2013 are exercisable (HK$)
—ETNFRA=+H 5,325,000 (235,000) - 5,090,000 “EERFRA-—t+HZE 9.45
May 20, 2004 —ZET—FRA+NH
May 20, 2005 to May 19, 2014
—ZEERF+—HA=+H 6,700,000 - - 6,700,000 —ET+F+—AZ+H=E 20.52
November 20, 2006 —E—XREt+—A+hH
November 20, 2007 to
November 19, 2016
425t Total 12,025,000 (235,000) - 11,790,000

LB EARE R N H B EAfEsT—2Z  All the above options may vest after one to five years of the grant date
REREE  WAREEHEBASEER  and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant,
HAMITT(E - LB EAREE S L - 57  after which they will lapse. No options were cancelled during the year.
I AR AD BRRE AR 5 8 o

() WMWABETEZALNTRMEA#ESBE R ()  Movements in the number of share options of the Company outstanding

HE@METHITEEZEHNT - and their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2013 2012
INREF 91T EE IR TEE

(FB%E) 8y (BH) A&7

Weighted average HiIREZE  Weighted average kg gs

exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

(HK$) options (HK$) options

R— A —HERWIT6E QOutstanding at January 1 15.62 12,025,000 15.48 13,227,000
21T7E Exercised 9.45 (235,000) 14.25 (1,152,000)
(R Cancelled - - 9.45 (50,000)
R+—BA=+—H®A#H77/E Outstanding at December 31 15.74 11,790,000 15.62 12,025,000
R+ A=+—RA F17{F Exercisable at December 31 15.74 11,790,000 15.62 12,025,000

FRNEZFWRETERMEIRE - RERN{E  No share options were exercised by the directors during the year. The
BITE 2RO PEESERETEHE 2 weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the

A IIRE W B A+ 7sm =1l » dates of exercise by the employees during the year was $46.02.

RERNITEZ KD EARETES B 2N The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for share

BB AN+ ST = ALl - options during the year was $46.27.

(i) MNEERMRETEZRMERE 0 (i) The weighted average remaining contractual life of options
HEEHFGBENBPAE—NE(ZF outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 1.8 years
——4F : —BENE) o (2012: 2.8 years).
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2. FREBRMERMEEZZEFHUT :

(i) —FEFE_FROFETE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

2. The movements of share options of HLP during the year are as

follows:

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

figtn BARESL B
Number of share options
R-T—=F R-TB—=&
—A—H +=A=+—H 1TEE
M ARARATIE B84/ e RAAT 1B A& 17 EAHE 2 1715 HR (B%)
Outstanding on B4k  Outstanding on Period during Exercise
BHAH January 1, B171E Forfeited/ ~ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2013 Exercised Lapsed 2013 are exercisable (HK$)
—EEPNFERA=—+H 5,430,625 (140,625) - 5,290,000 “EERFRA-THE 9.20
May 20, 2004 —E-WFERATNE
May 20, 2005 to
May 19, 2014
—EERFT+—ATHEE 4,770,000 (225,000) - 4,545,000 —TT+F+—H+MHEZE 16.75-22.55
—TTtF=A+NHB —T—+t&=A+NH
November 14, 2006 to November 14, 2007 to
March 19, 2007 March 18, 2017
T+ FN\AZ+—HZE 44,296,000 (1,964,000) (708,000) 41,624,000 —TT=N\FNA=-+—HZE 17.36-27.90
—ZET)\F+=ZA=+—H —T-N\F+=A=+H
August 21, 2007 to August 21, 2008 to
December 31, 2008 December 30, 2018
—T—FTF-_ANHZE 13,780,000 - - 13,780,000 —T——F-AN\HZE 26.46-27.27
—E-THFRH-H —E-TFRAA=1T—AH
February 8, 2010 to February 8, 2012 to
June 1, 2010 May 31, 2020
—T—TF+A-FTNHEZE 38,390,000 - (2,538,000) 35,852,000 —FT——FtH=-+hHZE 30.79-36.90
—ET—%A+=H8 T —FA+=H
July 29, 2010 to July 29, 2012 to
June 13, 2011 June 12, 2021
—E——F+=RAtH 1,350,000 - (1,350,000) - —FT—=Ft+-_AtRH=E 24.10
December 7, 2011 —E-—F+=A,xAH
December 7, 2013 to
December 6, 2021
45T Total 108,016,625 (2,329,625) (4,596,000) 101,091,000

bt A R B AT R B AR AT — Bk
MERFREE YR RLBEHELTE
FhEmBETE  ERROBESS
R o G AL A 1) BRI BE o

All the above options may vest after one/two to five years of the grant
date and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant,
after which they will lapse. No options were cancelled during the year.
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28 EE®H @)

(b) BOHERFN (&)

(i) —EZF-_FRHEEZ (8)
MR ATIE 2 B E AR EA B B R
BEMETHTEEZEBHMT :

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options of HLP outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

2013 2012
IREF 91T EE IR (E
(6:-1:-)) (A%)
Weighted [iavi) Weighted &
average A average kg gs
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
(HK$) options (HK$) options
R—H—HEAEITE QOutstanding at January 1 24.89 108,016,625 24.34 147,823,625
21T(E Exercised 19.38 (2,329,625) 12.92 (3,796,000)
(SR Cancelled - - 23.16 (32,630,000)
BRI/ B R Forfeited/Lapsed 27.20  (4,596,000) 27.61 (3,381,000)
Bw+—-—A=+—H Outstanding at December 31 2491 101,091,000 24.89 108,016,625
B AR T
N-E=H=+—H Exercisable at December 31 21.41 61,758,200 21.06 40,141,525
A FATE

F NI A ) i -

FR ARAREETRELTEZHHEAR
BUIEERMEZRDHE RFEFAEER
TEZBEOHEEE X RETER R ZA
M B E INEFHRHES =TT

RERNTEZBROBEITEE B 2 BRI
ERDINEFARES =t hThil -

RAEE B R ARRTT 2 1B 2 Ik Bl 4

ZIEFHRBKEOHRARH=F (=F
— 5 REME) o
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BiEEEAR AT HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

No share options were granted during the year.

No share options of HLP were exercised by the directors in the period
of their employment as directors of the Company during the year. The
weighted average closing price of the shares of HLP immediately before
the dates of exercise by the employees during the year was $29.00.

The weighted average share price of HLP at the dates of exercise for
share options during the year was $29.05.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of HLP options

outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 5.3 years (2012:
6.4 years).
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28 EEEA =& 28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) RIFHERER (5 (b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
(i) =—ZFE—Z—FRHEHEZ (ii) 2012 Share Option Scheme
A& in ERtEE B
Number of share options
RZE—=F R-z—=%
—HA—H +=A=+—8 1TEE
H AR T B2/ 2 R AT 15 BB 2 1T6EHR (8%
Outstanding on BE&  Outstanding on Period during Exercise
REBH January 1, 2RH B17E Forfeited/ ~ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013 are exercisable (HK$)
—F—=F,XxAWmA — 40,000,000 - (1,380,000) 38,620,000 fﬁﬁf/\ﬂ MmEZzE  28.20
June 4, 2013 —E-=F,XA=H
June 4, 2015 to
June 3, 2023
#a5t Total — 40,000,000 - (1,380,000) 38,620,000

st P B R i E S A B R AR B
EAMEAFEREE  LARNRE AL+
BEREMANITE  tERR O MERS
R o G A SR M A A ) ERRE AR 8K

RENEBEMERNEZZMERL A B
ZAMWEHES -+ EARl -

RAEE BB AREAT 2 1B E R B4
ZIEFFIRA KRS LR E -

FARR N 2 1B ER D RENE L B H
RREMEAR — SR TEBENX - &%
B B 2 R R M 2 80 Ik
Dz EFHEER ATl - AR
Rz hEF AR T

All the above options may vest after two to five years of the grant date
and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant, after
which they will lapse. No options of HLP were cancelled during the year.

The closing price of HLP shares immediately before the date of grant
during the year was $27.75.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options of HLP
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 9.4 years

The weighted average value per share option of HLP granted during the
year estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes pricing model
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted was $8.01. The weighted average assumptions used are
as follows:

R A#Z BEERE
1T1EE

B E B A K
BHERFEH ()

B IE

ARSI

HLP Share price at grant date $27.50
Exercise price $28.20
Risk-free interest rate 0.49%
Expected life (in years) 6
Volatility 0.41
Expected dividend per share $0.74

REPRERRK I IZEZHE ZKE - T)
REERLAPII—FRASAREZFHT

DITRLE - BHERRKREBEBIREM
BT o Bk AT B BRI HAFEMET
BEREATE -

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the one
year immediately preceding the grant date. Expected dividend per share
is based on historical dividend. Changes in the input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

(iii) In respect of share options of the Company and HLP granted to

the directors of the Company, who were also directors of HLP, the
related charge recognized for the year ended December 31, 2013,
estimated in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy in
note 1(v)(2) was as follows:

(1) Mr. Ronnie C. Chan, $25.1 million (2012: $28.0 million);

(2) Mr. Philip N.L. Chen, $34.5 million (2012: $36.2 million);
and

(3) Mr. H.C. Ho, $15.1 million (2012: $13.8 million).

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transactions and balances already disclosed elsewhere

in the financial statements, the Group entered into the following related

party transactions during the year in its ordinary course of business:

(@)

(b)

B LB AR 2R HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

The Group has a 20% interest in a joint venture which participated
in the development of Package One of the MTRC Tung Chung
Station Development Project and a new commercial project in
Tung Chung. At December 31, 2013, the Group advanced to
this joint venture a total of $945 million (2012: $525 million). All
advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Emoluments to directors and key management has been disclosed
in notes 7 and 28(b).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Exposure to interest rate, liquidity, credit and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group has policies and
practices approved by management as described below in managing
these risks.

(@) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from deposits with
banks and borrowings issued at floating rates. Interest rate trend
and movements are closely monitored and, if appropriate, existing
borrowings will be replaced with new bank facilities when favorable
pricing opportunities arise. In addition, the Group established the
Program which provides fixed interest rate facilities to the Group and
assists the Group to manage its interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities are
disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 19.

Based on the simulations performed at year end in relation to the
Group’s bank deposits and borrowings, it was estimated that the impact
of a 100 basis-point increase in market interest rates from the rates
applicable at the year end date, with all other variables held constant,
would increase the Group’s profit after taxation and total equity by
approximately $58 million (2012: $117 million).

This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in practice market
interest rates rarely change in isolation, and should not be considered
a projection of likely future profits or losses. The analysis assumes the
following:

— changes in market interest rates affect the interest income and
interest expenses of floating rate financial instruments and bank
borrowings; and

— all other financial assets and liabilities are held constant.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group manages its surplus cash centrally and the liquidity risk of

the Company and its subsidiaries at the corporate level. The objective

is to ensure that an adequate amount of cash and committed bank

facilities are available to meet all funding requirements. Significant

flexibility is maintained through diverse sources of committed credit

lines to respond to unforeseeable opportunities and events.

]
Group
BRRNRBERE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
—ZEWFN ZERAFA
BRMAEE —FR Between Between AFNUE
Carrying Bt Within land?2 2and 5 Over
LA B BITatE in HK$ Million amount Total 1 year years years 5 years
RITERREMEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 45,024 51,222 2,902 17,696 17,742 12,882
JE 5T BR R N2 EL A FE 5P R Trade and other payables 6,250 6,250 4,587 1,023 571 69
H=—ZB—=%+=HA=+—H At December 31, 2013 51,274 57,472 7,489 18,719 18,313 12,951
BHRRTRESTRE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BREE —FR Between Between AFRE
Carrying 45t Within land?2 2and 5 Over
B EEITTE in HK$ Million amount Total 1 year years years 5 years
RITERREMEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 37,645 43,679 2,128 2,326 28,726 10,499
JEASHBR TN 2 L fth FE AT R Trade and other payables 5,240 5,240 3,913 773 465 89
R-E——F+_-_H=+—H AtDecember 31, 2012 42,885 48919 6,041 3,099 29,191 10,588

(c) FERK
AEBZEERBREEREEBKRERNRER
FERITRIRIT NS BIME 2 TR R EZ o

AEBETHRZEERR  EhREYH
MPZBEEENGRYFEXNHEHERS
MARTE - REVEHENEBIEEIIRE
ERENGIETE  HEKXNEEZS
SIMMHRTRHMBEBEHEN TN AN - RAE
BFABER2MEHEN  AEELEF U
FRERFA T AERD - ARETE R
HEWGR - WERIREEHE - #E AR E(IA8 R
ZIEERBRERE
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B LB AR 2R HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables and
deposits and bonds held with reputable banks and financial institutions.

It maintains a defined credit policy including stringent credit evaluation
on and payment of a rental deposit from tenants. Proceeds from
property sales are receivable pursuant to the terms of the sale and
purchase agreements. In addition to the payment of rental deposits,
tenants are required to pay monthly rents in respect of leased properties
in advance. Except for sale of properties developed by the Group, it does
not hold any collateral over the receivables. Receivables are regularly
reviewed and closely monitored to minimize any associated credit risk.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group does not engage in any derivative transactions. Surplus cash
is placed with reputable banks and financial institutions in accordance
with pre-determined limits based on credit ratings and other factors to
minimize concentration risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in
note 26, the Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group or the Company to material credit risk.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

(d) Currency risk

Currency risk arises when recognized assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group’s entities to which they related. The Group maintains certain
bank deposits denominated in United States dollars amounting to
US$41 million (2012: US$143 million) and 10-year bonds amounting to
US$500 million (2012: US$500 million). Given that Hong Kong dollars
are pegged to United States dollars, the resulting currency risk on such
deposits is considered insignificant.

The Group also engaged in property development and investments
in mainland China through its local subsidiaries whose net assets
are exposed to currency risk. In addition, the Group holds Renminbi
deposits and bonds to meet its ongoing payment obligations in relation
to its development projects in mainland China which is denominated in
Renminbi. Where appropriate, the Group seeks to minimize its exposure
to currency risk in mainland China through borrowings denominated in
Renminbi.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

Management estimated that a 1% appreciation/depreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar would not have a material effect
on the Group’s profit after taxation and the Group’s equity attributable
to shareholders would be increased/decreased by $511 million (2012:
$450 million).

The above analysis has been determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

(e) Fair value
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets under recurring fair value measurement comprise listed
investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities, which are
measured using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets
(level 1). During the year, there were no transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy.

(ii)  Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The fair values of held-to-maturity instruments, unlisted investments,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, cash and
deposits with banks, bank loans and other borrowings are considered
approximate to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
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31 EESRHEE RAE

AT REM ZERRE

ff3E12(a) ~ 28(b) R30F B HIZKEWE K
BRPREVE2HERER D R B
keBTAAFERBZRENMERZE
£t o BETAEEEZEMEZRENT

(a) #EY*
AEB2RELYEGBEMRER Z2RITH
BHBERTSBAERE  EFTRKREE
BRREESELE ZHBANAMEESFE
M 2 AT EIRFE -

(b) EEBE

AEBEFETRENR  NEEHER
HrERFHITECEERS A EM
MEFR - HibEEZRENEREEMH
FERZEHBETNEREEZRAESR
HA e R ETT - Al @SB ARF
BERHEKRASIZEREEFEEEE (W
BA) - AFAE AR RERBETEUR

(c) Fris#

A EI*%‘%%&LEEP CHARETRERERE

E—mmlﬁz JTERBEREEMS ZA
SR EEL #U%ﬁ ° % FEF R ZRBB

EZ*%EEE%D;.E%?Z%%ETH BHER

ReEFEELREFEZMENMEER

TR o

(d) EHAFIEEEMER
AEBEFEMBRRERANZELERAEE
REERRERBGE N A A LR IEEEE
FERELABRBEBERARERE T SH#
R oo NEBFTIELHIE - SREERKE
BRI - RRERB RN /BN EBRE
R 5HE - REERBELERIBEE

31 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12(a), 28(b) and 30 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk relating to valuation of investment properties and
investment properties under development, and fair value of share
options granted and financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Properties held for sale

The Group determines the net realizable value of unsold properties
based on estimation of future selling price less costs to be incurred in
relation to the sale, with reference to the prevailing market data and
market survey reports available from independent property valuers.

(b) Impairment of assets

The Group tests regularly whether goodwill and other assets that have
indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined using fair value
less costs to sell or value-in-use calculations as appropriate. These
calculations require the use of estimates.

(c) Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business
and judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

(d) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The amount of the deferred tax assets included in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can
be utilized. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires the Group
to make judgments or based on the assessment of future financial
performance, the amount of future taxable profits and the timing of
when these will be realized.
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32 R BRZRREH
BE-T-=F+-A=t+—-RALFE"
AEEYERERAMBEGHMAGE
Rt B R AR 2 (B 3T © AR R - R
AUTE  RAINR B AR YA LM
ZEHBEEREARES -

32 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has not early applied the following amendments, new
standards or interpretations which have been issued by the HKICPA
but are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2013. The
adoption of the following amendments or standards will not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
AT B Bzl bAT&
Fia 2 EEtER AR

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 32 (&3] 4%) CHTH: 27 —HKiHepmEEReHBEE —ET—mMFE—-—H—H
HKAS 32 (Amended) Financial instruments: Presentation January 1, 2014
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
HKAS 36 ({&£5]7%) BERE — IFeRMEENTRE B KR —E—mF—-HF—H
HKAS 36 (Amended) Impairment of assets January 1, 2014
— Recoverable amounts disclosure for non-financial assets
HKAS 39 (&5 4) CRTH: BE — TETAZERKEELH hest —E—NF—H—H
HKAS 39 (Amended) Financial instruments: Disclosures January 1, 2014
— Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
HKFRS 10 ({85 A) - RE MK —E—mF—A—H
HKFRS 12 ({&7T4%) & Hh AR RS RER
HKAS 27 ({&5]7) BUMBEHE [REEE
HKFRS 10 (Amended), Consolidated financial statements, January 1, 2014
HKFRS 12 (Amended) and Disclosure of interests in other entities and
HKAS 27 (Amended) Separate financial statements “Investment entities”
HKFRS 9 ST A EA
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments N/A*

*RIIN-E-AF A RBZAERBHEREE -
FTHDEE £ BB RRE ©

33 BEMBHRK
EERN -2 -—MF—A-+ZBREYL
SFATUBB B -

* The original effective date of January 1, 2015 is removed and the new mandatory
effective date is to be determined.

33 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on January 23, 2014.
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34 FEMELQT

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Akihiro Company Limited 2 100 100 MEER&EE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
Antonis Limited* 10,000 52.5 = YEHE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP City Limited 2 52.5 - YEHE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Joy Limited 2 52.5 - VEERIEE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
AP Properties Limited MEERKIEE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
[A] B% 34 52.5 =
‘A’ shares
[BJ A% 6 52.5 -
‘B’ shares
AP Star Limited* 2 52.5 - ERIEE G
Investment holding Hong Kong
AP Success Limited 2 52.5 = LELiEN B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Universal Limited* 2 52.5 - MEME BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Win Limited* 1,000,000 52.5 - MEME BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP World Limited 2 52.5 = LESE B
Property development Hong Kong
Bayliner Investment Ltd.* 1%L 100 100 ZRIGE ABERTAS
Us$1 Investment holding British Virgin
Islands
Believecity Limited* 2 100 - ERKRENESER BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
& securities trading
Bonna Estates Company Limited 1,000,000 52.5 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
EEhEERAR 4,000,000 52.5 - MERE BB
Caddo Enterprises, Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
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34 FEMBATR @) 34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Cititop Limited 2 52.5 - MEERREE BE
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
Cokage Limited* 2 100 100 RIS & &
Investment holding Hong Kong
BEHERERAA BRI E B
Country Bond Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] % 990 52.0 -
‘A’ shares
[BJ % 1 52.5 -
‘B’ share
BEPEERAA 2 100 - BRI E BB
Country First Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BHE P EBR AT 5,000,000 56.2 - ERIEE BB
Country Link Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Curicao Company Limited* 2 100 - ZERIZE BE
Investment holding Hong Kong
Dokay Limited* 2 52.5 = MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Dynamia Company Limited 2 100 100 YEEREEE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
TBEEERBR AR BRI E B
Ease Smart Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] R 1 100 -
‘A’ share
[BJ % 1 52.5 -
‘B’ share
aEEERR AR 2 5205 - BRI E BE
Easegood Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BRAKERRAT 2 100 100 R E HE
Ever Brilliant Investment Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Folabs Limited* 2 100 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong

206 fEr=EARAT HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED 2013 4% ANNUAL REPORT



34 FEMBLAT @)
R—E—=%+_-_HA=+—H

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(B¥%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Fu Yik Company Limited* 3 52.5 = MEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
EXARAT" 2 52.5 - ZERIRE B
Gala Ruby Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
BREXERAR" 2 100 100 MEMEE B
Glory View Properties Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Gowily Limited 2 52.5 - MEEE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Centre Limited 4 52.5 - MEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Hotel Group Limited 10,200 52.5 - BREAFELERER BB
Apartment operating Hong Kong
& management
RS SEERAR PRI A BB
Grand Hotel Holdings Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] B 62,163,123 52.5 =
‘A’ shares
[B] & 6,000,000 52.5 =
‘B’ shares
EEERERAA 2 100 100 MEER BE
Great Cheer Development Limited Property development Hong Kong
Hang Chui Company Limited 2 52.5 = MEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Far Company Limited* 2 52.5 - ZRIEE BE
Investment holding Hong Kong
BRERAE] 200 52.5 - MEEE B
Hang Fine Company Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Kwok Company Limited* 10,000 52.5 = MEMRE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
1B (1750 BRAF] 10,000 52.5 - BEER B
Hang Lung (Administration) Limited Management services Hong Kong
1B (FE) BRAF 2 100 100 IR A B
Hang Lung (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
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34 FEMBLAT @)
R—E—=%+_-_HA=+—H

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(B¥%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
1B (K&E) BRAF 1 52.5 = PERRIR A BB
Hang Lung (Dalian) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BECEERAR 2 100 100 EREE HE
Hang Lung Enterprises Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
EREGEEEARAR 2 100 100 BE1S B
Hang Lung Financial Services Limited Financial services Hong Kong
BEKRERRAR " 2 100 100 EREE B
Hang Lung Investments Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
B OI%) BRAF] 1 52.5 = IR E B
Hang Lung (Jiangsu) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
B (&) ARAHA 1 52.5 - IR A Bl
Hang Lung (Jinan) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
1B (28) BRAF 1 52.5 - PERRIR A& B
Hang Lung (Kunming) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
1B (GE%E) BRAF 1 52.5 - IR E B
Hang Lung (Liaoning) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Hang Lung Park-In Limited 2 525 = YEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
BETIIEREBERAR 10,000 52.5 - TIHRIBEERE B
Hang Lung Project Management Project management Hong Kong
Limited*
EEHEFR A A 4,478,895,670 52.5 - PRI E B
Hang Lung Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BEYEESEER AT 100,000 52.5 - MEER HE
Hang Lung Property Management Property management Hong Kong
Limited*
EREMEREAR AR * 2 508 - MERIE B
Hang Lung Real Estate Agency Property agencies Hong Kong
Limited*
8% C&f%) BRAA 2 52.5 - ERRE o
Hang Lung (Shenyang) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BiE (KE) BRAF 2 52.5 - IR E BE
Hang Lung (Tianjin) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
EESERERR AR 2 100 100 Br 7% BE
Hang Lung Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
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34 FENMBELQT @ 34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
B (V%) BRAF 1 52.5 = PERRIR A BB
Hang Lung (Wuhan) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
18 (&55) BRAF 1 52.5 - ZERIRE B
Hang Lung (Wuxi) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Hantak Limited 2 100 100 ZERRIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hang Wise Company Limited* 200 100 100 MEEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hebo Limited 2 100 100 MEEER B
Property development Hong Kong
HL Enterprises Limited* 2 100 100 PERRIR A B
Investment holding Hong Kong
1BfEtRiE (E2E) BRAR* 2 100 100 75 B
HL Mortgage (HTG) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BiEEE (BRE) BRAR 2 100 100 5 B
HL Mortgage (NH) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BlEEE (REXE) BRAF 2 100 100 B BB
HL Mortgage (NP) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BfEME (FE) BRAR 2 52.5 - IR E B
HLP (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
HLP Finance Limited" 17T 52.5 - B ARERRES
US$1 Financial services British Virgin
Islands
EENEMEERARAR ARE1IT 52.5 = s B
HLP Financial Services Limited RMB1 Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Fortune Limited 1 52.5 = VB R B
Property development Hong Kong
BEMERERRAA 2 52.5 = B 1S B
HLP Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Treasury Services Limited* 2 52.5 = PRI E &5
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hoi Sang Limited* 2 52.5 - BERIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
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34 FEMBLE (@) 34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BBITIRA Zaiijava
(%) KB NEIFTHE Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Kindstock Limited* 2 100 = RIS & B
Investment holding Hong Kong
HHBRAF 1,000,002 52.5 - YR B
Lockoo Limited* Property development Hong Kong
BEEREGRAT 10,000 100 - ZERRIEE B
Luckyson Investments Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
iRt (FMRE) BRAR* 20 89.7 = g B
Lungsun Mortgage (PV) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
Magic Modern International Limited* 1 525 = B a5
Advertising Hong Kong
Mansita Limited* 2 52.5 - MERE G
Property leasing Hong Kong
Modalton Limited 2 52.5 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
Monafat Limited* 2 52.5 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
HERABER QA 2 100 - YEMEE B
Nikco Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
Palex Limited* 2 52.5 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
Paradot Limited* 2 100 100 YRR 0
Property development Hong Kong
Pocaliton Limited 2 52.5 - MERE BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Promax Limited 2 89.7 = VIR a5
Property development Hong Kong
EREHR AR 1,560,000 100 100 IR E B
Prosperland Housing Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Purotat Limited* 2 100 100 ERRIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
Rago Star Limited 2 52.5 - YEME B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Scotat Limited 2 89.7 = ERRIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
BXEEBR AT 20 100 100 MEERLEE G
Stanman Properties Limited Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

BEATIRA Ealiisnava

(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk

Issued EmADL EmADL Place of

AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation

Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations

Stooket Limited 2 52.5 - MERE BE

Property leasing Hong Kong

Style Giant Limited 2 89.7 - MEER B

Property development Hong Kong

BRERERAR 2 100 100 MEEERE BB

Success Cosmos Development Property development Hong Kong
Limited*

Tegraton Limited 2 52.5 = YEHE B

Property leasing Hong Kong

Topnic Limited 2 100 100 YEHE &

Property leasing Hong Kong

Velan Limited* 2 100 100 YR B

Property development Hong Kong

BEHEXEERA A" 100,000 5255 = MEMEE BB

Wai Luen Investment Company, Property leasing Hong Kong
Limited*

Yangli Limited* 2 52.5 - YEHE &

Property leasing Hong Kong

REXEBR AR * 1,000 100 100 BRI ENFESEE B

Yee Fly Investment Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong

& securities trading
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34 FEMBLAT @)
R—E—=%+_-_HA=+—H

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

Zailijava
SBATHE DRIFTHE Pk
FREAMINEEE B EmEDL  EmASH Place of
Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprises ZMEZR % Held by % Held by Evi Incorporation
in mainland China Registered Capital ~ The Group The Company Activity and Operations
NEEREMERR AR ANR#3 556,877,3557C 52.5 = LI AR B A
Dalian Hang Lung Properties Ltd. RMB3,556,877,355 Property development Mainland China
ERHAEREMERR AR AER#4,537,321,8007C 52.5 - MEER IR
Kunming Hang Ying Properties Ltd. RMB4,537,321,800 Property development Mainland China
EEEEMMERRAR AR #5,382,096,32470 52.5 - YEERNEE AR A
Liaoning Hang Lung Properties Ltd. RMB5,382,096,324 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
IEREEESR AT 385,000,0003 7T 52.5 - MEZERIEE AR i
Shandong Hang Lung Properties Ltd. US$385,000,000 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
&G EEMERR AT 349,990,000 7T 52.5 - EEREREE AR A
Shenyang Hang Lung Properties Ltd. US$349,990,000 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
KEBEREMERRAR 75#53,820,000,0007T 52.5 - L leifaspaif
Tianjin Hang Lung Properties Ltd. HK$3,820,000,000 Property development Mainland China
I EEMERR AR AR#3,837,746,2617C 52.5 - MEEREEE AR i
Wuxi Hang Lung Properties Ltd. RMB3,837,746,261 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
miEAMERR AT 75 #509,000,0007T 52.5 - LEYE B A
Wuxi Hang Ying Properties Ltd. HK$509,000,000 Property development Mainland China
HILEREEHERZEBR AR AR #3,680,000,0007T 52.5 - eI AR B
Hubei Hang Lung Property RMB3,680,000,000 Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd.
EEailiinAava
HMER SEMHE NGBS o SR
(E£m) #Emaotk #Ezmasth Place of
FE RN B Registered Capital % Held by % Held by EY Incorporation
Equity Joint Venture in mainland China (US$)  The Group The Company Activity and Operations
LPEEREMEREZEERAR 167,004,736 51.7 - MEERIES H B A,
Shanghai Hang Bond Property Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing
LEEREEERAT 17,766,000 70 - ey A B A
Shanghai Heng Cheng Real Estate Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd.
EEBEREMZEARAR 165,000,000 52.8 - MR REE AR B
Shanghai Kong Hui Property Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing

* R EFR G B ER
N ERBRKE

ERILBSRBEANKE BN NEE
BEAFEZIZHNBAR -
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* Not audited by KPMG
" Operated in Hong Kong

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the Group which in

the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of

the Group.
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35 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES
At December 31, 2013

BBITIRA Zaiijava

(%) KB NEIFTHE Pk

Issued EmADL EmADL Place of

AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by Evs Incorporation

Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations

HEEZERERAT 400 25 = MERE BB

Daily Win Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong

1B ERIE (K#E) BRAA 2 50 = W B

Hang Hing Mortgage (TH) Limited Financial services Hong Kong

BERFERERRAT 519,000 50 - 12 N A B

Hang Lung-Hakuyosha Dry Dry and laundry Hong Kong
Cleaning Limited cleaning

Newfoundworld Finance Limited 100,000 20 = BT B

Financial services Hong Kong

Newfoundworld Holdings Limited 2,000,000 20 = RIS E 6

Investment holding Hong Kong

Newfoundworld Investment 1%7T 20 = RIS & NEBERRAHS

Holdings Limited US$1 Investment holding  British Virgin Islands

Newfoundworld Limited 2,000,000 20 = YRR B

Property development Hong Kong

Pure Jade Limited 1,000 20 = LE L B

Property development Hong Kong

ERZERBRAR] 3 17.5 = MERE B

Star Play Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong

EHRRNIEEFHE

FHEM =TS

ERINLBESRRYANKRE BN MEE

BEAFEZIBELENF -

The above companies are not audited by KPMG.

The above list gives the principal joint ventures of the Group which in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of

the Group.
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